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Chairman’s Statement
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The year in review — 2013 — was a challenging year for the agri-
food industry. Although global economy showed signs of slow
recovery, impacts of financial crisis continued to linger and countries
continued to face various challenges. Recovery momentum in
developed economies remained weak while emerging markets, in
general, experienced slowdown in economic growth. This economic
complexity increased pressure on the operating environment of the
agri-food industry, but brought along various opportunities as well.
With increasing disposable income and higher living standards,
demand for higher quality and safer food products in emerging
markets will continue to rise. Quality players possessing technological
skills and business knowhow will be rewarded with unprecedented

opportunities.

Backyard farming is still the prevalent mode of agricultural production
in China and Vietnam, representing enormous potential with
regards to the commercialization of farming. Agricultural sectors in
both China and Vietnam are in the process of transformation, and
continuous commercialization will increase the penetration rate of
commercial feed. C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the
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“Group”) continue to adhere to our Group’s Three Benefits Principle #Ei 2 E M EBRLRERE -
— benefitting the country, its people and our company — contributing
to the well-being of the community and, at the same time, flourishing
together with the agri-food industries in China and Vietnam.
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In recent years, food safety has become one of the top social concerns.
As people become more affluent, demand for higher quality and
safer food products continues to increase. In fact, food safety and the
development of the agri-food industry in our operating markets go
hand-in-hand. Commercialization of farming and integration of the
agri-food value chain are effective ways to help improve food safety
in emerging markets. Having entered into China and Vietnam for
decades and with the full support of our corporate parent, the Group
has solid capabilities and knowhow to grow our business to new
heights. The Group will continue to leverage the strengths of our
upstream businesses to further develop our downstream food business,
providing safe, nutritious and tasty food products to our customers.

Against the backdrop of a weaker macroeconomic and industry-
wide environment, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders
decreased 8.8% to US$186 million in 2013. Nevertheless, the Group’s
fundamentals remained solid. Looking forward, the Group will
continue to place strong emphasis on technological innovation. The
Group will continue to leverage its competitive advantages to fulfil
our vision of becoming the Kitchen of the World.

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere thanks to our team for their efforts and contributions
to the Group over the past year, and to extend my gratitude to our
shareholders for their continued trust and support.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2014

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

A BB RECRBLGMNEEREZ — - JF
PEE H R M o AP S AR B A A T R OR
H g 8 m o BB B > R 2 SR AR Bh e A B
BEAHE o B RSE R AR S AL
TP BRI 455 R AR T K R A RBOR A o AU
A8 v 0 R b p A AR B R DA RS B R AW A2 )
SO > ARG I L A e I A B BB A RS > A
A P S A LR B o AR I AR B L i
BRI T R > AN EERAR
& B SRR R

AE B B AT SR R N B B M BRI T > A4
JBE o EAY B A F 8.8% E1.86M8 3 IT © 4R » A4
VB g 3R A R A R R AR o R BEOR R > A A N A
TR BT o ACHE [ 5 5 3L 35 0 B 1 EE B i
TRB S ) BA AR R B R o

B > AN JEHE et o 90 SR A 4% A I R A
TP S DR R > DR & BOR —
DA 45 A2 A S HF o

B
HHR

B “F-WEZAZHMH

— = _ =

- F fF

E

03












N\

A\ \
















12

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Financial Highlights
B E

b#% B B & R 2 A

(Unit: US$ million) (Hifr : B #FET) 2013 2012
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEE2HKHEREH
Revenue N 5,414 4,959
Gross Profit FA 690 673
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company GRS VR NN S o | 186 204
Basic Earnings Per Share (US cents)* B FEARR R (34l * 0.745 0.846
Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents) 5 T 9 38R A (&A1) 0.739 0.814
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B () 2.9 3.4
Interim Dividend Per Share (HK cents) A 5% o 1 B (Al ) 1.0 1.8
Final Dividend Per Share (HK cents) 05 B R 1 I 8L (Al ) 1.9 1.6
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMBRNEREA
Property, Plant & Equipment Yk~ MG Bt 819 589
Total Assets W 2,759 2,117
Total Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings FEE 8= ) & T e 977 541
Issued capital TR AT B AR 251 247
Shareholders' Equity JBE TR WA\ i £ 1,069 919
Total Equity RE 25 48 % 1,246 1,093
Revenue USS$ milion Gross Profit USS$ milion
A BEXET EF BEET
6,000 T 5,414 800
4,959 673 690
600
4,000 A
400 -
2,000 -
200 ~
0
2012 2013 2012 2013
Profit Attributable US$ milion Dividend HKcents
to Shareholders = &*7 Per Share &l
of the Company 30 1 BRRE 404 o
AR EF 2.9
AABBRE 00 4 G 186 29
SLE|
23 ol
100 +
1.0
0
2012 2013 2012 2013

Remark &k ¢

*

Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year. 3% 5] B AR EAG AAER R > SR AAE 9 T B ATV 8 e S T 40 Je 45 58 It =2 Jin e

PR WA o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The year in review, 2013, was a challenging year for the Group.
Since the beginning of the year, the agri-food industry in China
and Vietnam faced a number of challenges such as macro-economic
slowdown, disease outbreak and food safety incidents. These
challenges led to unfavourable impacts on the operating environment
of the agri-food industry.

These challenges have highlighted the importance and imminence
of commercialization of the agri-food industry. Transformation from
backyard farming to large-scale farming is becoming a major force in
the agricultural industry. Commercialization can increase productivity
and enhance disease control; it can also strengthen food traceability
providing safer food to consumers. In the long-run, we believe that
players who possess knowhow and technology will be able to win in
the marketplace.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue grew
9.2% to US$5,414 million (2012: US$4,959 million), of which the
agri-food business in China, the agri-food business in Vietnam and
the chlortetracycline business contributed 64.4%, 33.4% and 2.2%
of revenue respectively. Due to weaker performance of the Group’s
farming business in Vietnam, profit attributable to shareholders
decreased by 8.8% to US$186 million (2012: US$204 million) while
overall gross profit margin lowered to 12.7% (2012: 13.6%). Basic and
diluted earnings per share in 2013 were US 0.745 cents (2012: US
0.846 cents) and US 0.739 cents (2012: US 0.814 cents) respectively.
The board proposed final dividend per share (“DPS”) of HK$0.019.
Including interim DPS of HK$0.010, total DPS in 2013 was HK$0.029
(2012: HK$0.034).

Revenue

A

Others

i 2.2% —

Total Revenue

Vietnam Agri-food @ Llf(A
e 33.4%
5,414
US$ million

EREV

BEEEN®R DN

REHR

TR AR AR AR L PR B — 4 o R 4R
PGSR > v B R R Y R R S T B Y
50 LA R AR ~ BERE AR R K &
P o L B B RO i SR A R ER B R A
H S H -

i 2 P B 5 S R A AR AL R M R
AR o TP AR W 1 BUBL R SE R Y >
Iy Jod SRR R Y OB B o e SRR AL A H RE PR TH A
BESY > AT R I BEARE > W HE 0 R A S R P > A T
BHERPHE LM R - RIEMH - ALEHRER
185 50 S B0 4 8 S R LI g

EBOE

BERZ-=Z£+ZA=Z+—HIE+Z@mA A
EEEEFEWRI2NEMIMER T (T — 4 .
49.59f8 3 T0) > Hoh B R S - B R AR
KB HEH N WAE64.4% ~ 33.4%F12.2% o A
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18 B 13 E0.019% IG » 5 A H5 TR 51 B B 8 ik
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China Agri-food

64.4% s

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

- =

— =

- = £ F

#



14

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

CORE BUSINESS

Agri-Food Business in China

The Group announced in December 2012 our plans to move into
the food business in China. The value-added processed food projects
in Qinhuangdao and Qingdao are currently under construction and
are expected to commence operations in the next 12-24 months.
Therefore, in 2013, feed business was still the sole contributing
segment of the Group’s agri-food business in China.

As a reflection of China’s slowdown in economic growth and the
emergence of human cases of avian influenza A (H7N9), China’s feed
demand experienced a slower period in 2013. According to China
Feed Industry Association, feed production in China decreased by
8.7% year-on-year to 136 million tons in the first nine months of
2013. Compared to the steady growth of China’s feed market in the
last decade, this slowdown in 2013 was rather unusual.

With softened market conditions, the Group’s feed business in China
was inevitably under pressure. In 2013, the Group’s China feed
sales volume posted a mild decline of 2.0% to 5.72 million tons. In
spite of a slight reduction in volume, China feed revenue increased
5.6% to US$3,487 million, in which complete and concentrate
feed contributed 94.9% while premix contributed 5.1% of revenue.
Within complete and concentrate feed segment, swine, poultry, aqua
and other feed products contributed 50.1%, 29.5%, 9.7% and 5.6%
of revenue respectively. Our revenue growth in 2013 was mainly
attributed to the Group’s successful sales and marketing strategy,
which is anchored on technical service, providing customers with
comprehensive animal nutrition solutions. Gross profit margin for
China agri-food business was 15.2% (2012: 14.8%).

A

TEXRK

TERRERER
A R — AR T A o I R

M EEE] o HOHTR RS BRI TR IEAEE
H s AR AR K12 2448 A I AH B A o UL > R
TR AR R SR A A AR G T v I R A SR
Fy W — 5 S AR L o

52 B v B A O AR Be N R B WA R
(HTNO) M 5 i B A 552 > 2548 v I L 7 SR A%
ALY i I R TSR 1 s > —F SR E LA
) B} E B 45 AR R 8. 7% 25 1. 3648 M > H Lk v 1 i )
ENBETERENR > ZERNRHUNEEER -

T 3 T 85 7 RO AR AN 5 1B A o AR 2 %
B EER o Y R — AR > ASHE M v [ R 2L A 8
BB T 22.0% 3572 B M o AT Y B Wk % >
AR B B ETF5.6%F34. 87830 » Hh A
15 TS A B U i 5 BL 4 28 3£ A 94.9% » FEIR A 1 )
BIAE5.1% o fE R E A KM R R > 5 & - K
2 S e R} B 4 AN EE50.1% ~ 29.5% ~
9.7%K%5.6% c ZF AR JEHEFNM R A HEEE
B B B B R T 4 SR MR > T B A AR RS - K B
KRBT ZNHYEERMY TR - PEBRENE
B BB R E15.2% (F— 4 : 14.8%) °

Breakdown of China Feed Revenue

Hh Bl 8L BR AR
: o,/ Other Feed Products
o 5.1% . / 5.6% seiwtmsms
Aqua Feed 0
ittt 9+ 7 Yo
Swine Feed
50.1% g
Poultry Feed
i 29.5%
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B FE R 2

Swine feed was the main growth driver of the Group’s China feed
business in 2013, reflecting the Group’s strategic focus on increasing
the sales of swine feed products in recent years. In 2013, the Group’s
swine feed revenue grew 9.4% year-on-year to US$1,748 million with

sales volume increasing 3.0% year-on-year to 2.73 million tons.

Poultry feed demand in China decreased significantly due to the
impact of the emergence of human cases of avian influenza A (H7N9).
As a result of industry-wide slowdown and the Group’s emphasis on
swine feed, in 2013, the Group’s poultry feed revenue dropped 4.6%
year-on-year to US$1,027 million with sales volume decreasing 10.5%

year-on-year to 1.98 million tons.

As for aqua feed business, revenue grew 13.0% year-on-year to
US$337 million with sales volume increasing 0.3% year-on-year to

0.47 million tons.
Agri-Food Business in Vietham

In 2013, the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam, and in particular
the farming business, faced a number of challenges. These challenges
included economic slowdown, depressed meat prices and a new
shrimp disease. As a result, the Group’s performance in the first
half of 2013 was particularly hard hit. Entering the second half of
the year, the situation started to improve. The increase in meat
prices, especially swine prices, alleviated a great deal of the pressure
on the Group’s farming business. As for the Group’s aqua business,
although the new shrimp disease Early Mortality Syndrome (EMS)
has been scientifically identified as a bacteria issue, the industry is
still developing solutions to cope with EMS. In 2013, revenue of the
Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam grew 18.3% year-on-year to
US$1,808 million. Feed business accounted for 46.6% of the Group’s
Vietnam revenue, while farm and food businesses combined accounted
for the remaining 53.4% of the Group’s Vietnam revenue. Overall

gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam in

2013 was 6.8% (2012: 9.5%).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

7

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

TR REE P BRI ER W R )
KB FEER R o R WA R [ A A AR SR W B
R E R o ZF S ARG MR BN
BB A ETF9.4% 217 48483850 » MR LT
3.0% 273 H5 M o

ZRNBUR R H R B R (HINO) ML 2 s PR E
BB R KR T - TR BB A RAURAE
) o R A OB R R SRR
Bl R A T H4.6%E 102783550 » S BIRET
:10.5% 2 19815 g o

AR 2 A B J5 T > 8 EBUIRAE L TF13.0% 233748 3
JG > SH B AR LFF0.3% 47 H M o

HERNERER

TR SE S REEMBE B ERES BN
R EE > W R L P - s Pk AR
T A% ~ VA AR 2K BT R o Bk > AR =%
—SEPREEELEBRBVETR AT E
AR UL o I CRR B B8 9 A% ) PR IR
Wl Fb > KU 4% A AS 4 1 28 A SE s T I B R g o
FR A [ K S SR T > B SR A MR [
WIET i A ] AR SRR R A & AP o AR > fHL3E
FATAEBF 8 RE A T B0 T 55 B e J MR b 5 8 o 1]
JEAE 9 > S S [ R P A1 O SR A S R AT 0
18.3%F 18.08fH 3£ 0 » H i Bl £ #A546.6% »
BRI BRI 4E53.4% o P T — =4 > KRB
B PR AR A MR BRI R 6.8% (2%
— A 1 9.5%) o

- & — =

— =

F F B



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

A

Vietham - Revenue

HE - YA
Farm and Food
Feed
US$ million
0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200 BEET
Feed ks,

The Group’s feed business in Vietnam continued to maintain its
leading position in the industry. In 2013, the feed business posted a
steady revenue growth of 7.4% year-on-year to US$843 million, of
which swine, poultry, aqua and other feed products accounted for
49.0%, 23.0%, 25.0% and 3.0% of feed revenue respectively. Feed
sales volume increased 0.6% year-on-year to 1.48 million tons in
2013.

A 45 18 R T A R} 3 A 3 0 00 4E 2 b A 1 B Rr A
BE oM EFER BT ZEREBEHE B
EBWIWEWET4%E8.43EHE70 Kb - & - K
B 3L B B BE 43 B4 49.0% ~ 23.0% ~ 25.0% K&
3.0% o B — AR BB 4 B8 R 4R L TH0.6% 2
148 W o

Breakdown of Vietham Feed Revenue

L RE BRHUA BI A

3 00 b Other Feed Products

Aqua Feed

Kt 29.0% \ \

Poultry Feed
e 23.0%

At B 8 i

0/. Swine Feed
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

Farm and Food

As discussed earlier, 2013 was a difficult and challenging year for the
Group’s farming business in Vietnam. The Group’s performance was
under pressure, particularly in the first half of the year. Swine prices
were at low levels in the first half of 2013, on average 10-15% lower
than the corresponding period in 2012. Poultry prices were also at
low prices in the first half of 2013, adding pressure to the Group’s
operations. As for the Group’s shrimp farming business in Vietnam,
we are carrying out various experiments to identify and enhance
suitable solutions to cope with EMS. Thus far, most of our research
efforts have been focused on farm set up and farm management
practices. In 2013, the combined revenue of the Group’s farm and
food businesses in Vietnam grew 29.9% vyear-on-year to US$965

million, but margins remained weak.

OTHER BUSINESSES

The Group’s other businesses comprise chlortetracycline (“CTC”) and
industrial businesses. In 2013, the CTC business recorded revenue
of US$119 million, representing a 7.8% decrease from last year. The
Group’s industrial businesses consist of three jointly-owned entities
engaged in the manufacture and sale of motorcycles, manufacture and
sale of automotive parts, and the trading of Caterpillar machinery. In
2013, the industrial businesses contributed an attributable profit of

US$18 million to the Group, an increase of 97.7% from last year.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the business
outlook in 2014. In China, the government’s emphasis on agricultural
development will drive the commercialization of the industry, which
in turn will stimulate demand for commercial feed. As concern on
food safety continues to rise, the Group’s food processing business will

stand to be one of the beneficiaries going forward.

In Vietnam, if meat prices continue to recover, our livestock farming
business performance should continue to improve. On the aquaculture
side, we will continue to work on ways to cope with EMS. Despite
these short-term challenges, we are confident, as before, about the

long-term potential of our Vietnam business.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total assets of US$2,759.5
million, increased by 30.4% as compared with US$2,116.9 million as
at 31 December 2012.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Net debt (31 December 2013: US$476.3 million, 31 December 2012:
US$356.4 million) to equity ratio (defined as total borrowings minus
cash and deposits divided by total equity) was 0.38 as compared to
0.33 as at 31 December 2012.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings of the Group are
denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”) (31 December 2013: US$493.8
million, 31 December 2012: US$77.9 million), Vietnamese Dong
(“VND”) (31 December 2013: US$454.3 million, 31 December 2012:
US$452.2 million) and Renminbi (“RMB”) (31 December 2013:
US$28.6 million, 31 December 2012: US$10.5 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had borrowings of US$4.9
million (2012: US$0.5 million) which are at fixed interest rates.

The Group monitors exchange rate movements and determines

appropriate hedging activities when necessary.

All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam are transacted in
RMB and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain raw
materials and equipment. The Board considers the fluctuation of RMB
and VND during the year had no material impact on the Group’s

business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$470.1
million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: US$183.2 million), an
increase of US$286.9 million.

The carrying amounts of the time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group are denominated in US$ (31 December
2013: US$103.2 million, 31 December 2012: US$17.1 million), VND
(31 December 2013: US$9.1 million, 31 December 2012: US$11.8
million), RMB (31 December 2013: US$356.7 million, 31 December
2012: US$154.2 million) and other currencies (31 December 2013:
US$1.1 million, 31 December 2012: US$0.1 million).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B FE R 2

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, out of the total borrowings of US$976.7
million (2012: US$540.6 million) obtained by the Group, US$12.8
million (2012: US$12.3 million) were secured and accounted for 1.3%
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, land lease prepayments and trade and bills receivables
with an aggregate net book value of US$10.1 million (2012: US$41.5

million) have been pledged as security.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current portion of long-term
bank borrowings amounted to US$30.6 million (2012: US$13.5

million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the contingent liabilities of the guarantees
provided by the Group were US$35.8 million (2012: US$19.7

million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS IN VIETNAM

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s biological assets amounted
to US$327,478,000 (2012: US$292,798,000). The change in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2013
of US$34,680,000 (2012: US$72,920,000) was mainly attributable
to (i) increase due to purchases/raising of biological assets of
US$885,692,000 (2012: US$773,881,000); and (ii) decrease due to
sales of biological assets of US$798,134,000 (2012: US$650,953,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded gains
arising from net changes in fair value less costs to sell of biological
assets of US$10,680,000 (2012: US$8,299,000). The increase was
mainly due to increase in selling price of swine and increase in

physical quantities of swine held by the Group.

We have complied with relevant Vietnam laws and regulations
and have obtained the requisite licenses and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities, including the Investment Certificate issued
by the Management Board of Dong Nai Industrial Zone which is

necessary for the Group to carry out our farming business in Vietnam.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save for the acquisition as disclosed in note 38(a)(ii) to the financial
statements, the Group did not make any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2012.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed around 37,000 staff
(including 28,000 staff from subsidiaries, 6,000 staff from joint
ventures and 3,000 staff from associates) in the PRC, Vietnam
and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing market rate while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include, for example, medical insurance, training

and share option scheme.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The principles
of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the directors of the board of
the Company (the “Board”) is comprised of fifteen directors
including nine executive directors, one non-executive director
and five independent non-executive directors. Biographies of
all the directors are set out on pages 34 to 39 of this annual
report. The relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among directors
have been disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors

and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse board to strengthen its effectiveness and governance.
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity considerations,
which include but are not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and will give
adequate consideration to this policy and also take into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and organisational

needs.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Board Composition (continued)

The Board believes that it has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements
of the businesses. The balance between executive and non-
executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
check and balance that safeguard the interests of shareholders

and the Group.
Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr.
The Group has three chief executive officers, namely Mr.
Thanakorn Seriburi, Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr.

Jiumjaiswanglerg who are responsible for industrial business,

Dhanin Chearavanont is Chairman of the Group.
Sooksunt

China area and Vietnam area respectively. The roles of
chairman and chief executive are separate. Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board while
chief executive officer is responsible for managing the Group’s

businesses.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive directors fell below one-third of the Board upon the
resignation of an independent non-executive director on 26
June 2013. Following the appointment of an independent non-
executive director on 25 September 2013, the Company was in
compliance with the requirement under the Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules thereafter.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in

the Listing Rules.

n

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two
executive directors, namely Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
(Chairman), Mr. Adirek Sripratak, and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew, Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
and reviewing the nomination policy and board diversity
policy, reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and organizational needs, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting individuals nominated for directorship, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive
officer. In considering the nomination of new directors,
the Board will take into account the gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service of the candidates, the benefits
of diversity on the Board as well as other requirements under
the Listing Rules.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual

general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Board may appoint
any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (in case
of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-
election. In addition, at each annual general meeting of the
Company no less than one-third of the directors for the time
being shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has held two meetings during
the year to discuss the nomination of an independent non-
executive director and recommend the appointment of an

independent non-executive director to fill the vacancy.
Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating and reviewing
business strategies and directions, overseeing the management
and monitoring the performance of the Group. The Board
delegates its responsibilities to the management to execute
these business strategies and to deal with day-to-day

operations.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also adopted a code of securities dealing for
senior management and relevant employees (the “Code”) in
terms no less exacting than the required standard indicated by
the Model Code. Senior management and relevant employees
as defined in the Code deemed to be in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its shares are

required to prohibit from dealing in securities of the Company.

The directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations are disclosed in the Report of the

Directors on pages 40 to 60 of this annual report.
Directors’ Training

The Company encouraged all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Having made specific enquiries
of all directors, the directors confirmed that they have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/training courses or by reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’ duties

and responsibilities.
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General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board (h) REAS - E=gRE=Tg8THNEESS
Committee Meetings E3
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has NERE-FBZ—=F+_H=+—HILFEE
held one annual general meeting, one special general meeting, AKAGFCE TR RFEERE - —RBEER
five Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one FMRE hXEFEFEHR  MKEZEZR
Remuneration Committee meeting and two Nomination FEE - RGN BRE RN RIRL TR
Committee meetings. The attendance of individual director is BEw® MANESHBELHUNT :
set out in the following table:
No. of meetings attended/held
LS VR £ LS
Annual Special
General General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Meeting Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
133 13
HEXRE LY IVN | #HE  HHERG  HMZEE  RAZHEE
Executive Directors Hii##F
M. Dhanin Chearavanont B 1/1 o1 4f5 - - 1
M. Adirek Sripratak V318 1y 11 11 55 - 11 0N
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi BAR %L i i 25 - 11 -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E AN i 1l 25 - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HERLE ot I 565 - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg &4 Wil il 55 - - -
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BERLA 01 01 4/5 - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont BB 01 01 1/5 - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan % 1: i o 45 - - -
Non-executive Director FAEF
M. Meth Jiaravanont Btk 1/1 1/1 5/5 N - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFAGES
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew R EAE 1 1 55 0N 11 0n
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres & & 11 01 4/5 iy 01 s
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul%t 11 11 4/5 Y 11 1
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej 4 il il 55 - - -
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach Yanyong Phuangrach’G 4
(resigned on 26 June 2013) (RZB—ZFEAR A HREE) 1/1 - 25 - - -
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon% 1:
(appointed on 25 September 2013) (R-Z-ZERA-THHRRE) - 11 25 - - -
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(h) General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings (continued)

The directors can attend Board meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The directors are consulted to include matters for discussion in
the agenda of Board meetings.

The Company gives notice of regular Board meetings at least
fourteen days in advance and reasonable notice for all other
Board meetings.

Agendas and board meeting materials are sent to the directors
at least three days prior to the Board or Board committee
meetings.

(0] Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers
liability insurance for its Directors and officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
(a) Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in
annual and interim reports.

(b) Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditors of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 61 and 62.

(c) Accounting Policies

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.
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Accounting Records

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose the financial position of the
Group upon which financial statements of the Group could be

prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Safeguarding Assets

The Board is responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the

Group.
Going Concern

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 28
January 1999. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
substantially the same as the provisions set out in the CG
Code, are available at the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda
Thanitcul and the non-executive director, Mr. Meth

Jiaravanont.

During 2013, the Audit Committee met two times. The
following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during 2013:

o review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2012
with recommendation to the Board for approval;

° review of the report from KPMG to the Audit

Committee for the year ended 31 December 2012;

o review of compliance with the CG Code;
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Audit Committee (continued)
o review of internal audit reports of the Group;

o review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2013

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

o review of the report from KPMG to the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2013;

° review of audit and non-audit services undertaken by

the external auditors; and
° review of the effectiveness of internal controls.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2013 with recommendation to the

Board for approval.

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors and the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors. To ensure external auditors’ independence,
the Audit Committee has reviewed audit and non-audit

services undertaken by the external auditors during the year.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the

Group’s external auditors is set out below:

n

(9)

o]

EREEE (B
. B ) A 4R ) A 7 R 5

. RPBRE B -ZHENAZHFHIEA
il 3 B B e R P A A > I
BRERGEM

. 2 B S G LR P 8RR H
FREZR-=ZFAA=ZTHIEAM
H L 5

. % ) Hhy A T A SV AT P A e JE T
R 5 K

. 2 ) P S 42 M K o

REEERE  BREZHAFNREZF
—EHE A= H AR AR B K
SERESER AT > WERE F @A -

W% Z B A AR O AT
PRI 0 R S S 8 S I A Sy T < LIPS
PRk o 7 e R S8 A W 8 S > AL R
B TRt AR P9 H A1 I A S AT P 7 A
Be I 78 1% i 5 o

TP e LA JRE 1A > A S B S A A7 R A B i S T
EWE

Category of Services iR 5 %5 3 2013
2=
(US$°000)
(F 7 F L)
Audit services %R 1,152
Non-audit services A% B
— taxation services B 1
— review engagements and i
agreed-upon procedures AT ER )T 308
Total okl 1,461
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal

controls, assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and particularly
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programs and budget.

During the year, the Board adopted an inside information
handling policy to provide guiding principles and procedures to
assist employees of the Group in reporting and disseminating
inside information, maintaining confidentiality, and complying
with dealing restrictions so as to enable the Group to make
timely decisions on the handling of inside information and
communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in ways which
are in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), the Listing Rules and other relevant rules and

regulations.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is kept regularly
appraised of significant risks that may have impact on the

Group’s performance.

The Board considers that the Group’s internal controls are

adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
September 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Chiu
Cheung, Andrew (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul and two executive directors, namely
Mr. Adirek Sripratak and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi.
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TEERRE

(a) Remuneration Committee (continued) (a) HMEES (HE)
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing FMEE A EEERN T T EE A EH
the establishment and operation of formal and transparent NBHBEAR > &5 @ EHHHREH
procedures for developing the remuneration packages FERIFE 3 T DALAT © BbAh > HIWZ B g0
of directors and senior management. In addition, the R 2 A BHLAS A ) B A T o
Remuneration Committee provides effective oversight and
administration of the Company’s share option scheme.
The Remuneration Committee has held a meeting during HMEEGRERNEHT R > DLt
the year to discuss and review the remuneration policy A HME R A EFMERETEANEH
and package for directors and senior management. No T o HEMEE FAEWM R B P 2 EBIT AN
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his own TN o 4538 =5 0 TN 4 w0 SO B A AR M R
remuneration. Details of emoluments of each director are set 10 °
out in note 10 to the financial statements.
The remuneration of the members of the senior management RERE_Z-=Z82+_H=+—HIL4E
by band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: W mREEANBERBEZHMHEE DT :
(HK$) Number of Senior Management
(V) RMAEMABRANB
0 to 2,500,000 0%2,500,000 1
2,500,001 to 5,000,000 2,500,001%5,000,000 1

(b) Remuneration Policy (b) HEMEE

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who will underpin the success
of the Company and enhance the value of the Company to
shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

To Convene Special General Meeting

Members of the Company holding, at the date of the deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can submit a written requisition to the Board
for convening a special general meeting pursuant to Bermuda

Companies Act 1981.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of the

written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in
writing (and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to

all members of the Company.
To Make Enquiry to the Board

Members of the Company can make an enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the

Company.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Any number of members of the Company representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
members having at the date of the requisition a right to vote
at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less
than one hundred members can submit a written requisition
to the Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings

pursuant to Bermuda Companies Act 1981.
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TEERRE

(c)

(d)

To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings
(continued)

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of
not more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting and the requisition must be signed

by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in
the case of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
by not less than one week before the meeting in case of any
other requisition. The requisitionists must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the

statement to all members of the Company.
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) who are qualified to attend and vote at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to
the Board to propose a person for election as a director of the

Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of
his willingness to be elected and the candidate’s information
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and a written consent from the nominated candidate to
the publication of his personal data at the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as

a director are available at the website of the Company.

B AR
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(d)
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INVESTORS RELATION

The Company believes in maintaining full, open and timely
communication with its shareholders, and observing high standards in

corporate governance and shareholder communications.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group in
a timely manner to the shareholders and the public through
the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars and
announcements. Financial and other information relating to the
Group are disclosed on the Company’s website. In addition, the

Company maintains regular dialogue with the investment community.

The Company values feedback from shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board and

management directly.

During the year under review, there had been no significant changes

in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEANEBESFS

Mzr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 74, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed to
Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont was
appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Charoen Pokphand Group. He
has extensive experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), True Corporation
Public Company Limited (“True Corporation”) and CP ALL Public
Company Limited (“CP ALL”), which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr.
Chairman of the Company and a member of the Remuneration

Adirek Sripratak, aged 67, has been appointed as a Vice

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company since
1 April 2012. Mr. Sripratak has been the President and the Chief
Executive Office of CPF since 2003. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of CPF and of the Company. Mr. Sripratak is also a
director of CP ALL and Siam Makro Public Company Limited (“Siam
Makro”), companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. He
is an advisor to executive of Chiang Mai University Council in
Thailand. He has more than 40 years’ experience in the agri-business
and food industry. His valuable experience is widely recognised and
has led to his appointment to a number of public offices and positions.
His public service experiences include serving as a Senator of the
National Assembly of Thailand, the Honorary Chairman of the Thai
Broiler Processing Exporters Association and an Honorary Director
of Chiang Mai University Council. He received Honorary Doctorates
from a number of universities in Thailand including Maejo University,
Mae Fah Luang University, Rajamangala University of Technology
Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala University of

Technology Isan and Kasetsart University.

R - 74K 0 AL\ VERIHEARA R Z
PATHEF - WA BRI RAE R AL 5 AT
EHER KR R -FE A ZHN\HE I
AR ERR - SR RN —H
BRERBRATEGLNE - W h MgLEZ
HHRREEHAGR - oL mA W - B &
5 o et 3 B AR B 2 RIS o OB EA A ]
— KM A B 2 H B AL o # S8 A I8 £ Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited ([ CPF]) ~
True Corporation Public Company Limited ([ True
Corporation]) B8CP ALL Public Company Limited
(TCP ALL)) 2 # iR (ZFH % it 48 B 27 22 5 Pt
EWiZzAN) -

N EE 6T AT~ FENH —HE#
ZEMARNGZHEFR AN FAHME R G
REZBEHEE - £BAER_RE=Z4AMABCPF
Z B AT R o IR & CPEAI AR 2 5 4 T Hf
BAF ZHEH o 4L RCP ALLKSiam Makro
Public Company Limited ([ Siam Makro]) (W % i
RBEBHRRH EHZAA) ZEF - hRE
Chiang Mai University/#% 3 € W B - 15 B 8 18
JOFEFRE R B M TR - M W H Rz
5% H &M 28 B > Thai Broiler Processing
Exporters Associationfy % 2 F i & Z& B Chiang
Mai Universityb% # € B % 8 3 35 o 5 70 46 B 5
T K 2 8% 4 B 1 2 4% A FiMaejo University
Mae Fah Luang University > Rajamangala University
Chiang Mai

University » Rajamangala University of Technology

of Technology Suvarnabhumi »

IsanfKasetsart University ©
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 68, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Vice
Chairman in 2005 and Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company in 2008. His titles
were subsequently changed to Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (Industrial Division) with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr.
Seriburi has resigned as the chairman but remains as a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2012. He also
holds directorship in several companies of the Group. Mr. Seriburi
is also the chairman and chief executive officer of the automotive
industrial business group (China) of the Charoen Pokphand Group.
He has been working on investment projects for the Charoen
Pokphand Group in the PRC since 1979 and has extensive experience
in industrial operations in Asia and elsewhere. Furthermore, Mr.
Seriburi is the chairman of Zheng Xin Bank Co., Ltd., a licensed bank
in China.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2005 and has been appointed as a
Vice Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. He obtained a

Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business and Public

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 49, has been an Executive

Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(“C.P. Lotus”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and True Visions Public Company Limited (“True
Visions”). He is also a director of True Corporation, CP ALL and
Siam Makro and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mzr. Bai Shanlin, aged 54, has been appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company
with effect from 28 February 2010. His title was changed to Chief
Executive Officer (China Area) with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr.
Bai obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu
College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist
in Agricultural Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in
the PRC. He joined the Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991 and is
currently the senior vice chairman of the Group’s agri-food business,
responsible for the operation of agri-food business in Xinjiang,
Ningxia, Gansu, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu, Heilongjiang, Jilin
and Liaoning. Mr. Bai has extensive experience in the management of
agri-business operations. He is also a part time professor honored by
Agricultural University of Gansu and People’s University of China.

Mr. Bai also holds directorships in several companies of the Group.
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Mzr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 61, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 12 October 2011 and Chief
Executive Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since 1 April
2012. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg had over 30 years of experience in animal
feed sales and breeding, having been with the Charoen Pokphand
Group since 1 February 1980. He has been the general director of
C.P. Vietnam Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company, since 2005.
He graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Anan Athigapanich, aged 62, has been an Executive Director
since 28 February 2010. Mr. Athigapanich obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Agriculture from Sukhothai Thammatirat University,
Thailand and received his Doctor of Agriculture Management degree
from Maejo University, Thailand. He joined the Charoen Pokphand
Group in 1977 and is currently the senior vice chairman of the
Group’s agri-food business, responsible for the operation of agri-food
business in Guangxi. Mr. Athigapanich has extensive experience
in the management of agri-business operations. He also holds

directorships in several companies of the Group.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 46, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majoring in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also an executive director of C.P.
Lotus and a director of Siam Makro. He is also a director, president
and chief executive officer of True Corporation and a director and
chief executive officer of True Visions and True Move Company
Limited.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 65, has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mrs.
Watcharananan has been an Executive Director of CPF since 2000.
She is also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in

Economics.

Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglergft & > 615K » H =%
——H+H+HRBEEAAFZRHGTESREEA
TR TR — B AT AR G ) o
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Move Company LimitedZ # 2 & & i #4T R -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 55, has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director of the Company and appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company since 9 August 2010. Prior to
his re-designation, Mr. Jiaravanont has been an Executive Director
and an Executive Vice Chairman of the Company since 2005.
Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from New York University, USA. He has
extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and strategic
business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is also an
executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior executive
assistant to the chairman-finance of the Charoen Pokphand Group
and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew, aged 72, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was appointed as
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known
as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently a director of
Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30 years’ experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Ma received his
bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (University of London) in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited, Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited and Chong Hing Bank Limited, all of
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Furthermore, Mr. Ma retired as an independent non-executive
director of Asia Citrus Holdings Limited on 12 November 2013, a
company listed on both the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
the AIM Board of The London Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEEESE

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr.
Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Deo-isres obtained a bachelor’s

Deo-isres was appointed as a member of the Nomination

degree in Laws from Thammasat University and a master’s degree in
Laws from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand. He has held various
senior positions with the Thai judiciary. He was a former Senior Judge
of the Supreme Court of Thailand and currently is a member of the

academic justice committee of the President of Supreme Court.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on 1
April 2012. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law degree from
Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law degree from
Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington, USA and a
Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University of
Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the legal field and
is specialized in competition law and the World Trade Organization
Agreements. Mr. Thanitcul is presently a Professor of Law and was

a former Dean at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University,
Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 63, obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Accountancy and a master’s degree in Political Science from
Thammasat University, Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnvej is
the chairman of Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. and
independent director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited, companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Thailand. He was the Director General of The
Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to
2011 and the Director General of The Revenue Department, Ministry
of Finance, Thailand from 2008 to 2010.

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 61, has held various government
positions in Thailand since 1997 and has retired from the position
of Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce in September
2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) from Thammasat University, Thailand,
a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Sukhothai Thammathirat University,
Thailand and a master’s degree in Business Administration from

National Institute of Development Administration, Thailand.

Sombat Deo-isres# 2k » 728 > H ZFF H4F I
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—HERERRA TR E A  Deo-isresit 4 H
A Z& @ Thammasat UniversitydE Bt R 8 4 B8 1 &
Chulalongkorn University¥%H & il £ B2 4L o 1 5 i
2% ] 3 0 3 A 20 A e AR AL o A R T A RO T
Bt e AR e B Ry e BE e RBE Rl iR HE
ZH -

Sakda ThanitculdG 2 » 555% > B &% )\ 44K H
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RIEBRLFZEGHE ° Thanitcul B HH R EH
Chulalongkorn UniversityZ ¥ 8+ 8 fr ~ H A
Kyoto University& 3 B University of Washington
Z W E A B AL A H AKyoro University & 3
University of Washington=2 2t 1+ 241 o 1 it ¥
R R AR WEER B RS R R A
5510 o Thanitcul 5628 Bl % B BUIR B W A 23 1 2
£ Chulalongkorn University#: B R LR = o

Vinai Vittavasgarnvejdt 2k > 635 » 7 8 &K B
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fEH £ 2 AL o Vittavasgarnvej s 2 Bl I 25 Sahamitr
Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd.Z & fiEkarat
Engineering Public Company LimitedZ % 3. % % &
FERERTLE (WEARBEFBHFLZLS I EHZ A
Al) o M B FAEFE R4 S AR B B
FEHBERER AN _ERNEE R —FERHRE Y

Vatchari VimooktayonZ 1: > 615% » B —JuJLL4E
A A B AR A ] B BORF B AL R —F — =40
HBRIEH R AR H R ZBAL o VimooktayonZ &+
¥ &K W Thammasat University T 5 B (& 5]) 2
LB Ar ~ B Sukhothai Thammathirat University#
2 B A7 F1 78 B National Institute of Development
Administration T. ¥ % HLfH 4 B2 47 o
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Bobby Bo Wai Chang, aged 44, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 48, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for an
international accounting firm and several listed companies in Hong

Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek
Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan. Saved
as disclosed above, there is no family or material relationships among

members of the Board and senior management.
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Report of the Directors
EERFTE

The directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
in China and Vietnam are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of animal feed products and valued-added processed food
products; breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic
animals. Additionally, the Group is also involved in various other
relatively smaller businesses, including the manufacture and sale of
chlortetracycline products, motorcycles and automotive parts and

trading of machinery.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 63 to 197.

An interim dividend of HK$0.010 per share (equivalent to
approximately US 0.129 cents) was declared and paid during the year
under review (2012: HK$0.018 per share (equivalent to approximately
US 0.231 cents)).

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend for 2013
of HK$0.019 (equivalent to approximately US 0.245 cents) (2012:
HK$0.016 (equivalent to approximately US 0.205 cents)) per share,
totaling approximately US$61,422,000 (2012: US$51,392,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 6 June 2014, the final dividend will
be paid on or about 30 June 2014 to the ordinary share holders and
convertible preference share holders, whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 20 June 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 5
June 2014 to 6 June 2014, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2014.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 19 June 2014 to 20 June 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend for 2013, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2014.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests,
and results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2013,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, are as

follows:

»
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Report of the Directors
ESREE

EERRE (#)

WA s RAFRMR ZF—NENATILEEZR
—WAENHZ B H R (8RR EIEAER ) B
FRAAF B P BT AT ERR A B
TREEVREE —F— AR KRB R > Bais i M e 3
PEFAE RS RF—MEANATHNHTEN
W= 20 B0 s B AR W] A U B4y 4 P B S
BE > U S A R A ] > Mk 2 A AT
B RERISIPEA RO 1717128 171654 > B¢
HIEG T -

MBERME
AGEEEE RS T = HIR TR

A~ AR e o e B i DL T A (4K B
H T A F LM s W -

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—&F—= ZER-CFE R ZFRE _FEFNLE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FuxFrx FErFrxr Frfir Frfir FrLTi
Total assets HH B 2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534 173,073
Total liabilities FAN =R 1,513,173 1,024,325 982,811 528,375 39,294
Non-controlling interests I e i e E 2 177,193 173,896 156,948 61,974 9,697
Equity attributable to NN
shareholders of the Company — HE#& 1,069,122 918,659 828,512 496,185 124,082
2,759,488 2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534 173,073
Profit for the year A2\ E] IR HEAR
attributable to shareholders i A1)
of the Company 186,211 204,154 173,199 132,840 8,554
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EEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 are

set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2013.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$241,274,000 (2012: US$248,917,000)
which included the proposed final dividend for the year 2013 of
US$61,422,000 (2012: US$51,392,000) proposed on 24 February
2014. Details of the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to

the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other

purposes amounted to US$2,698,000 (2012: US$1,443,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest customers and
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and

purchases for the year ended 31 December 2013, respectively.

DIRECTORS

»

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg
Mr. Anan Athigapanich

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach
(resigned on 26 June 2013)

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
(appointed on 25 September 2013)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon who was appointed as independent
non-executive director to fill a casual vacancy of the Board on 25
September 2013 had retired and been re-elected as independent non-
executive director at the special general meeting of the Company on
20 December 2013 in accordance with the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Mr. Adirek Sripratak,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, Mr.
Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew and Mr. Sombat Deo-isres will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

All non-executive director and independent non-executive directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in

accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such

directors to have remained independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a

party during the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long
Positions)

A H

EERITETBRAERERRAAREBE
RANRD RABBERGOERRKXE (F)

(a) EBRALAWER(HFR)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued ordinary

Number of ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
A 2w 24T
Ft o 35 4 Tt 5 8 i st A
HREAW 5 4 Jit 6y 8 B BE £ H 4r Lb
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.17%
i 1 R S A iR E
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 62,584,807 0.29%
BB R &
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.10%
v R e A Ha A H
Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b)) EERAQAFRNHEBLATNER (FR)

corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

()

Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

(i) Charoen Pokphand Group Company

Limited
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Number of associated
Name of director Capacity shares held corporation
Al 5 82 24 )
O # AT B A
WP AW =g iis i #5 I 4y 8 H RN 4P
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 228,277,810 12.96%
B R 4 A R
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 11,322,605 0.64%
BRI Y5 R &
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Report of the Directors

EEHREE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTETBRABRELRAIRAEBRE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN RENRG REERGVERRXE (F)

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b) EZERAQATNKMBLATINER (FA)(H)
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)
(continued)

(i) Kinghill Limited (i) Kinghill Limited

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

Al 5 8 4 )

O3 AT IR A

HHEAW 54 P 8 i 4y 8 H BEZ A 4 e

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 8,403,137 2.80%
i B R A A HR R

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 1,352,857 0.45%
FAEA IR TR

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the directors [ F#i#k@EHS » R _-F—=4+_H=+—H >
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short ARIEEHM EEH B35 S HARA G HEZE
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its eIl A FE 8% » X BRAR 58 4 4 < ) 1) A< 2 =) K 06 <2
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)  #FH i@ » BEMAT /M F ok TEHTHABEARLA
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under &) 8 H I8 7] (3385 BI& M 5B XVES I A e #)
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and ) B4 S A0 B et P A (- EZS sk iR A o

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FERREBBEEFSRPERGFREERT
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT HEZAEREZIXENAL
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE

UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

At 31 December 2013, the following persons (not being a director R_F—=4F+_H=1—H > HIEBHFH K& H
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and  #E336F M E AR AT HEZ B A4 8 » Tk
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as A+ (ERA G MFEF K T EITHAR) RARAFH)
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant &4 S AH B B BEE U REZS iR BT ¢

to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
percentage of the

issued ordinary

Number of shares and share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity underlying shares held the Company
AR W S B AT
&
A R it A BE 2
i 5 4 A 54 il 1i3iE g6 [ER /g2
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(M #E1) (Hiit2)
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (3) Interest of controlled corporation 18,792,774,153 (L) 86.23 (L)
e A i) B
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public (4) Beneficial owner and interest of 18,792,774,153 (L) 86.23 (L)
Company Limited controlled corporation
R A A R A R
Notes: 5 -
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) TLIRFEITFA -

(2) The percentage shown above is based on the number of ordinary shares (2) DEAESRIR 2=+ _"HA=+—HHBE
in issue as at 31 December 2013. BTG By BEH B o

(3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“CPG”) had a long  (3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company by virtue of its (I CPG 1) F # fiCharoen Pokphand Foods
shareholding in Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited Public Company Limited (I CPF ]) f4 It #E ifi 3+ f7
(“CPF”). 18,792,774, 153 AR A W e 4y (BF ) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
— 2 -=% % 8§




C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(4) CPF has a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company
which includes (i) 5,900,931,085 shares of the Company beneficially
owned by CPF and (ii) 12,891,843,068 shares of the Company
beneficially owned by its wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment
Limited. CPG has also declared interest in these shares by virtue of its
shareholding in CPF.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share options of the Company were granted, cancelled and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2013. A total of 368,448,078
share options of the Company were exercised on 18 February 2013.
Details of the movements in share options under the share option

scheme during the year are set out below:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

»

=

Report of the Directors
ESREE

TERREBBEZRBEROARERT
REZERZIXEHAL (H)

WL = (%)

CPFR# A 18,792,774,153 B A 24 w] Bty (Uf47) &
BHE (i) 5,900,931,085 B A A w] B4 HCPFE 2 e
K (ii) 12,891,843,068 B A 22 w) [ 4y by 3 2 % B g
A CPF Investment Limited B 35 #EH o CPGZS H
I HEH CPFRY JBEHE > WO BRBIEA 3% 5 ey O R 2

(4)

B bl @ F A > R F-EF A=+ —H
05 55 5 10 0k 4] S 33 ok M R Hhi AR 4 ] A 2 B
ALY 0 Bk > Ll 1 A 4 ) e I A2 T % U A A
WAL GEARA R MERREEITHEAR) EARL
A4 M A R R A v AR R R

BT E

AKAFHERERERE 2248+ H=1+—
HILFEERNBRAZE - GRS MR - KA AL
368,448,078 I EC A —F—=4_H +/)\ BT
o AR PO > AR S AR T B 2 AR A B S R
B

- & — =

— =

£ £ B
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Report of the Directors
EEREE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) iR 8 (&)
Number of Number of Number of
share options at share options ~ share options at
1 January 2013 exercised 31 December 2013 Exercise price
RZZ—=%  during the year REB-=4 g 4
Category of participant —~H—HHi ERfES  FZAZ+—H Date of grant Exercise period HK$
SR I H WREHA H R HERA i BM T #L
(i) Directors
Y
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont 12,800,000 12,800,000 - 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0390
25 February 2013
AR “RREE CREEETACSIANE
ZRZTAA ZR-ZEZRZARR
12,800,000 12,800,000 - 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 0.390
1 May 2014
ZRZENELRZH “ERNELAZHE
ZZ-WELAZH
12,000,000 12,000,000 - 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 0.354
18 May 2015
“ERLFLATRA ZRFNETATARE
ZZ-LELATAR
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi 21,584,807 21,584,807 - 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0390
25 February 2013
BARELE CERZECIACHAR ZRREEZAZIARE
CR-ZEZACSHEA
20,000,000 20,000,000 - 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 0.390
1 May 2014
ZZEMELRZH ZERNERAZHE
ZZ-mELNZA
21,000,000 21,000,000 - 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to
18 May 2015
“ERLERATRA ZRRUEHATARE 0354
ZR-LELATAH
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 21,000,000 21,000,000 - 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 0.354
18 May 2015
A “RREELATAA “ERLELATANE
“E-LELATAR
(ii) Other participants in aggregate 181,463,271 181,463,271 - 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0.390
25 February 2013
ENP T N Tt ZRBRERECAZAAR ZRREREZACHAAE
ZE-ZEZACHAA
162,048,078 32,800,000 129,248,078 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 0.390
1 May 2014
“REMELAZA CEENERAZHE
ZZ-NELRZH
182,848,078 33,000,000 149,848,078 19 May 2005 19 May 2003 to 0.354
18 May 2015
“RRRELATAA “RRLELATAAE
ZZ-HERATAR
047,544,134 368,448,078 279,096,156
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had entered into
the following connected transactions that were subject to the Listing

Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:
Construction Project Management Contracts

On 6 August 2013, Chia Tai Food Enterprise (Qinhuangdao) Co.,
Ltd. (“Chia Tai Food Qinhuangdao”) and Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Food Qingdao”), both wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the Qinhuangdao
construction project management contract and the Qingdao
construction project management contract to appoint Chia Tai
Land Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Land”) as construction project manager
for the construction works, equipment installation and fitting out at
the respective plants of Chia Tai Food Qinhuangdao and Chia Tai
Food Qingdao in the PRC. The maximum project management fees
payable to Chia Tai Land by Chia Tai Food Qinhuangdao and Chia
Tai Food Qingdao under the respective contracts shall not exceed
RMB56,097,000 (approximately US$9.1 million) and RMB34,051,500
(approximately US$5.5 million) respectively.

CPF is interested in approximately 71.3% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company and approximately 45.1% of CPF’s
issued share capital is held by CPG. Due to CPG’s near majority
shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed to treat
CPG and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, including Chia Tai Land,
as connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under each
of the Qinhuangdao construction project management contract and
the Qingdao construction project management contract is treated as
if it was a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions are reported and announced under the Listing

Rules as if the same were to be applicable.
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REHEMAR > ZEEREMARAR ((EXKE
W BEKREMRESGMEREMTERTHEELA
B TR st TR - SRR asIEe
MH o IE KA FRE B IE RS W E 585
BT 43 3l 3 A TE KB b g v AS i A\ R 56,097,000
(F1910# 3 70) fn AN R 34,051,500 (#5508 3 t)
) IE H 45 P o

CPFRAE AR AT CBAIT AT £171.3% » M CPFE B AT
G #145.1% HCPGRA o HNCPGR: A CPFHE: AT 1
e et > A\ BLCPG ] 35 ML CPG B 3 32 A )
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:

Supply

On 30 May 2011, the Company entered into a supply agreement (the
“Master CPP Supply Agreement”) with Orient Success International
Limited (“OSIL”) for the supply by the Group to OSIL and any
related entity designed by OSIL of various feed-related, farm-related
and food-related products such as animal feed, chlortetracycline,
animal drugs and feed raw materials, breeding and farming livestock,
and processed meats and food products (“CPP Supply Products”). The
Master CPP Supply Agreement and the annual caps were approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company on 22 July 2011.

As a result of internal group restructuring, OSIL transferred its
subsidiaries in the PRC to High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”)
in October 2013. Both OSIL and HOEL are indirectly wholly-
owned by CPG. Despite being transferred from OSIL to HOEL, these
companies have remained the same relevant entities designated by

OSIL as purchasers of the CPP Supply Products.

As the Master CPP Supply Agreement was expired on 31 December
2013, in order to continue the supply of the CPP Supply Products
to these entities in the ordinary course of business, the Company
has entered into a new CPP supply agreement with HOEL on 14
November 2013 (the “New Master CPP Supply Agreement”) with
substantially the same terms as the Master CPP Supply Agreement
and took effect on 1 January 2014 and continue until 31 December
2016. The New Master CPP Supply Agreement and the annual caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on
20 December 2013.

Both OSIL and HOEL are indirect subsidiaries of CPG and are
treated as connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Master CPP Supply
Agreement and the New Master CPP Supply Agreement are treated as
if they were continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
actual sale and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under
the Master CPP Supply Agreement amounted to US$531,152,000 and
US$1,885,700,000 respectively.

A H

BER-ZETF A= AIREER . AEEE
HEAT N B o fE ) T 52 o Sl ZE AR 4t v R o
SE TR A A B B

frE

WZF——FAH=+H > KA F HOrient Success
International Limited ([ OSIL ) #T 32— 43 £ & 17} i
(I boepemEsatma ) - mAREE mOSILMIL I EZ
AT e I3 7 A S A0 4 RLAH R~ S AH TR B & AH B
FEN o BB - &BER - BRERERHE AR
VIR EREEE M TR B R R AR (T b gt
EEMRD o PEEEEAGRKEE ERORZ-F
——AE B H 22 H A A BB S R A

PN EMEA > OSILE N —F— =4+ H i
A 3 2 Bt JES 24 Bl 7 High Orient Enterprises Limited
(THOELJ) ° OSILAIHOELJCPGR # & & A
845 B BOSIL# 3 FHOEL » #% % 2 5] 3 f# #5 8
OSIL¥E 5& [ AH [l AH BR A 364 2 I 04 436 1 28 5 A SR G
J5 o

B Mt A SRR 2 —=F T+ -H=+—H
JEW o B THEAREE T M ZEAEEEE Mk
B RE R M > A AR HHOELE R —~F—=4+—H
+ 00 H B ET — T b W RE k(DB b e gk A
Wk l) o HMERE b AR KRB R > R
F—NE—H—HEBERAEZE_F—ANF+2H
Z+—H o B NGBt R R LRER ZE
—Z4ETOH A HOEAR A R r B R A o o

OSILAHOELY J:CPG #1422 M Jag 2 = Be e 18 25 A
ATFIRE BB R Z BN o BRI > IR REA
T R AT I e A U R T I AR B AR A A AR
ARG LR ZFREAAR S - RZF—=
FTZAZ+T—HIEEEN > PEEEARRE TR
T W BT WS 9 B A AR B B 4 il A 5083,115.28
0 K 181%8,570H 34T -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase

On 30 May 2011, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the “Master CPP Purchase Agreement”) with C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.
(“CPT”) for the purchase of raw materials, machinery and equipment,
promotional products, packaging materials, breed and farm livestock
and aqua stock, meats and other items required for production
and sale of animal and aqua feed, farm and food products and
chlortetracycline products (“CPP Purchase Products”) by the Group in
the normal course of business from CPT and its related entities. The
Master CPP Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company on 22 July 2011.

As the Master CPP Purchase Agreement was expired on 31 December
2013, in order to continue to purchase the CPP Purchase Products
from CPT and its related entities in the ordinary course of business,
the Company has entered into a renewed CPP purchase agreement
with CPT on 14 November 2013 (the “Renewed Master CPP Purchase
Agreement”) with substantially the same terms as the Master CPP
Purchase Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2014 and continue
until 31 December 2016. The Renewed Master CPP Purchase
Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 20 December 2013.

CPT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.P. Intertrade Co. Ltd. which
is owned as to approximately 51.31% by the four members of the
Chearavanont family, namely Mr. Jaran Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri
Jiaravanont, Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon and Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont.
As such, CPT is treated as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master CPP Purchase Agreement and the Renewed Master CPP
Purchase Agreement are treated as if they were continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the actual purchase and annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the Master CPP Purchase Agreement
amounted to US$242,036,000 and US$558,900,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Business Carve-out

On 11 December 2009, the Company entered into a business carve-
out agreement (the “Master Business Carve-out Agreement”) with
OSIL for OSIL’s lease and/or use of non-feed related fixed assets
(comprising land, buildings and plant and machinery) located in the
PRC. The Master Business Carve-out Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 25 January 2010 and
took effect on 28 February 2010 and to continue until 31 December
2012. As announced by the Company on 31 December 2012, the
Company and OSIL entered into a renewed business carve-out
agreement (the “Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement”)
with substantially the same terms as the Master Business Carve-out
Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2013 and continue until 31
December 2015. The Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement
and the annual caps are exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval, reported and announced under the Listing Rules as if the

same were to be applicable.

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and is treated as a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master Business Carve-out Agreement and the Renewed Master
Business Carve-out Agreement are treated as if they were continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the actual rental and
annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed
Master Business Carve-out Agreement amounted to RMB18,235,000
and RMB28,800,000 respectively.

Lease

On 18 October 2010, the Company entered into a lease agreement
(the “Master Lease Agreement”) with OSIL for the Group’s lease and/
or use of relevant fixed assets related to feed production (comprising
land, buildings and plant and machinery) located in the PRC. The
Master Lease Agreement and the annual cap were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 24 November 2010 and
took effect on the same day and to continue until 31 December 2012.
As announced by the Company on 31 December 2012, the Company
and OSIL entered into a renewed lease agreement (the “Renewed
Master Lease Agreement”) with substantially the same terms as
the Master Lease Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2013
and continue until 31 December 2015. The Renewed Master Lease
Agreement and the annual caps are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval, reported and announced under the Listing

Rules as if the same were to be applicable.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Lease (continued)

OSIL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and is treated as a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the
Master Lease Agreement and the Renewed Master Lease Agreement
are treated as if they were continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the actual rental and annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Renewed Master Lease Agreement are
RMB14,032,000 and RMB37,100,000 respectively.

CPG Technical Assistance Services

The technical assistance services agreement dated 19 August 2009
made between CPG and C.P. Vietnam Corporation (formerly known
as C.P. Vietnam Livestock Corporation) (“CPVC”) as amended
by an addendum dated 1 January 2011 was further amended on 30
May 2011 (the “CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement”)
for the provision of certain technical assistance services by CPG
to CPVC in connection with CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The
service fee is equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value of the products
manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPVC in Vietnam or exported
from Vietnam, exclusive of value added tax chargeable on the sale
of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and regulations,

commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods.

As the CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement was expired
on 31 December 2013, in order to continue to receive the technical
assistance services by CPG in connection with CPVC’s business,
CPVC has entered into a renewed CPG technical assistance services
agreement with CPG on 14 November 2013 (the “Renewed CPG
Technical Assistance Services Agreement”) with substantially the
same terms as the CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement and
took effect on 1 January 2014 and continue until 31 December 2016.
The Renewed CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement and the
annual cap are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval,
reported and announced under the Listing Rules as if the same were to

be applicable.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Technical Assistance Services (continued)

CPG is treated as a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the CPG Technical Assistance Services
Agreement and the Renewed CPG Technical Assistance Services
Agreement are treated as if they were continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the actual service
fee and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement amounted to
US$26,008,000 and US$37,700,000 respectively.

MS Technical Assistance Services

The technical assistance services agreement dated 1 January 2011
made between Modern State Investments Limited (“Modern State”)
and CPVC was amended on 30 May 2011 (the “MS Technical
Assistance Services Agreement”) for the provision of certain
technical assistance services by the Group through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Modern State, to a non-wholly owned subsidiary, CPVC,
in connection with CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The service
fee is equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value of the products
manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPVC in Vietnam or exported
from Vietnam, exclusive of value added tax chargeable on the sale
of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and regulations,

commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods.

As the MS Technical Assistance Services Agreement was expired
on 31 December 2013, in order to continue to receive the technical
assistance services by Modern State in connection with CPVC’s
business, CPVC has entered into a renewed MS technical assistance
services agreement with Modern State on 14 November 2013 (the
“Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services Agreement”) with
substantially the same terms as the MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2014 and continue until 31
December 2016. The Renewed MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement and the annual cap are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval, reported and announced under the Listing

Rules as if the same were to be applicable.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

MS Technical Assistance Services (continued)

CPVC is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which
CPF (being a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore
a connected person of the Company other than at the level of the
Company’s subsidiaries) will be able to exercise more than 10% of
the voting rights in the general meeting. Hence CPVC is a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the MS Technical Assistance
Services Agreement and the Renewed MS Technical Assistance
Services Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, the actual service fee and annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the MS Technical Assistance
Services Agreement amounted to US$26,008,000 and US$37,700,000

respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

In respect of the connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions, the Company has complied with the relevant
announcements, reportings and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under the Listing Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Transactions with joint ventures and associates, and interest income
and expenses from/to OSIL/HOEL and its related entities disclosed as
related party transactions in note 39 to the financial statements do
not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions or was below the de minimis thresholds under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed below, the directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2013.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with KASIKORNBANK Public
Company Limited, as mandated lead arranger and agent, and other
lenders (the “Lenders”) relating to a facility amount of US$410
million granted to the Company by the Lenders (the “Facility
Agreement”). The facility will be used for the Company’s general
corporate purposes, working capital, new investment projects and/or

expansion of existing projects.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
CPF ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 51% of the beneficial

interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render any
commitments under the facility to be cancelled and/or all outstanding
liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement to become

immediately due and payable.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors were not
aware that any of the directors has interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised three independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director of the Company. The
establishment of the Audit Committee serves to enhance corporate
governance practices. The principal duties of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements prior to the

publication of the interim and final results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed KPMG as auditors of the Company on
14 September 2012 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Ernst & Young.

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors

of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
24 February 2014
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7

Independent Auditors’ Report

cblic

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 197, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 3 A% BUA 3R S

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FETEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2013 RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

2013 2012
R =4 R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it FFi FEo T T
REVENUE LN 5 5,414,290 4,959,059
Cost of sales 89 8 A (4,724,122) (4,286,381)
Gross profit EH 690,168 672,678
Net changes in fair value A K B A S
of biological assets Z S E) T 6 10,680 8,299
700,848 680,977
Other income, net HoAth e A R AR 7 18,328 44,455
Selling and distribution costs 858 K Ay 8 AR (246,962) (212,317)
General and administrative expenses TE R EEE (206,254) (183,975)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 8 (50,842) (50,583)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A i ) B e 18 -
Joint ventures BEAE 20(a) 20,969 14,476
Associates iR = /N | 21(a) 13,331 10,157
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt Tif i A 9 249,418 303,190
Income tax P # Bt 12 (45,759) (67,683)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AR A 35 A 203,659 235,507
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H il 2 T UK A
Items that will not be reclassified HEM A AgHEE S ER
subsequently to profit or loss: B ZHE -
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation M AN
of office premises, net R /B EE 15 (6) 4,703
Income tax effect Jr 45 56 5% 8¢ 31 - (828)
(6) 3,875
Items that will be reclassified HekammsmzE
subsequently to profit or loss: B ZHH :
Exchange differences on translation A b 3 S i 4 S g
of foreign operations Z [ 5t 75 % 25,838 3,621
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE Al B Ath 22 7] W 25
Joint ventures BEAE 4,389 —
Associates 1 2 ] 1,821
Disposal of available-for- sale investments HETEHEZRE (21) -
32,027 3,621
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEB R X
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE

2013 2012
R =4 R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it FFi E e n
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR B B % A 4E H fib
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX EL & 32,021 7,496
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A AT 4 i UK A A
FOR THE YEAR 235,680 243,003
Profit attributable to: i A ] 43 4y e Y
Shareholders of the Company VNN 186,211 204,154
Non-controlling interest I 42 ) T E 2 17,448 31,353
203,659 235,507
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 T o AR AT B 43 T
Shareholders of the Company N/ 216,026 210,409
Non-controlling interest I e ) ek W 2 19,654 32,594
235,680 243,003
US cents US cents
F Ml FEl
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A 4 w] Ji 3 BEA% =
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY  #F J i Fl 14
— Basic — SR 0.745 0.846
— Diluted — ¥ 0.739 0.814

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the  A4EJEZ BB FHH R M B MEM L3R BE -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R

31 December 2013 =& —=4+=-H=+—H

2013 2012
R =4 e Sy
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt it FoF FILFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS B B &
Property, plant and equipment LUE B & A 15 819,349 588,719
Investment properties Eigsg/ES 16 29,537 26,513
Land lease prepayments A L g 17 55,996 44,872
Non-current biological assets JEE B A& E 18 44,609 47,374
Investments in joint ventures REEEENZE 20 124,435 107,303
Investments in associates RS AR NERE 21 49,654 44,110
Available-for-sale investments ]k 22 1,345 877
Other non-current assets A IE 3 B & 2 23,233 9,038
Deferred tax assets B GEBLIE A A 31 - 1,995
Total non-current assets H8 Ik i B & 1,148,158 870,801
CURRENT ASSETS i By &
Inventories 5 23 603,679 613,968
Current biological assets HE A& E 18 282,869 245,424
Trade and bills receivables JRE W B 5 W ik % 5 24 139,084 121,168
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - & K H Al
JAE W R ok 25 85,270 81,338
Pledged deposits CHGT A7 3K 26 30,357 1,027
Time deposits with maturity over three months 2] H &4 = H
Z B 26 95,931 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K B 4 S E 26 374,140 183,154
Total current assets B A R 1,611,330 1,246,079
CURRENT LIABILITIES it By £
Trade payables FEAT B 5 Bk K 27 230,147 223,712
Other payables and accruals JH Al JRE A MR K K T AR 28 257,183 204,036
Bank and other borrowings SRAT S Ho At A 3K 29 534,003 499,568
Income tax payables JE A e A4 Aok 19,915 15,901
Total current liabilities B ) £ 1,041,248 943,217
NET CURRENT ASSETS Ui B & e 570,082 302,862
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AR T B AR
LIABILITIES 1,718,240 1,173,663
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R 2 =

FEEMBARRE
31 December 2013 —F—=Z4+_H=+—H
2013 2012
—E =4 R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hf i FF FLFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B A
Bank borrowings SRAT A 29 442,713 41,006
Other non-current liabilities Hoph Ik 7 B A 30 13,686 12,084
Deferred tax liabilities E St A E A H 31 15,526 28,018
Total non-current liabilities 28 Ik 3 Bh 471,925 81,108
NET ASSETS R A 1,246,315 1,092,555
EQUITY HE #3
Equity attributable to shareholders AR 2 ) B R A RE 25
of the Company
Issued capital BT A 32 250,538 246,854
Reserves i 34(a) 757,162 620,413
Proposed final dividend R AR B S 13 61,422 51,392
1,069,122 918,659
Non-controlling interest I e ) 1 M 2 177,193 173,896
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 3 1,246,315 1,092,555

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

February 2014.

Arunee Watcharananan

Director #

SUE &

Thanakorn Seriburi 254

Director # 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

WEF AT Y H R KR

— 2 -=% % 8§



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A HE 3L
HERZEE R
Year ended 31 December 2013 RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR
Available-
for-sale
Share Share  Deferred Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-

Issued  premium opton  payable  Capital  Merger revaluation revaluation reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
apital  account  reserve shares  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total interest equity
ke

L#fr B WRE it ik il Kk BEEh T ORERE AR ik kit

REOERE BE O EMRE BB B ERRE  BE O RREE BE MR RMRE AR BE AW
Noe  USFO00  USS000  USSO00  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USFO00  USKO00  USS000  USS00  USFO00  USS000  USS'000  US§'000  US000
ki FEifr Fifr Fifr Fifr Fifr Fifr #ifrn #ifr #ifr #ifr #ifr #ifr #ifr #ifr #itx

(note 34 (note 34 (note 34 (note 34 (note 34 (note 3¢
(i) (a)lii) @) @) (a)i)  (a)lvii))
(ks (b4 (ks (Wb (ke (b4
(@)i)  (a)lii) @) @) (i) (a)lvii))
At 1 January 2012 e St S i 13,849 1284916 8410 249658 13,109 (1612918)  25,8% 185 66349 4181 4BEL 63296 818510 156948 985,460
Profit for the year Kl - - - - - - - - - - 1414 - 44 3B 1507
Other comprehensive income EREEAEYE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on AERRAT
translation of foreign BN ER
operations - - - - - - - - - 1380 - - 1380 1,41 3001
Surplus on revaluation of ofice ~~ HEBFEHBRFH
premises, net 15 - - - - - - 4703 - - - - - 4703 - 4703
Incorme tax efect ity E 3l - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive ERETE
income for the year - - - - - - 3875 - - 1380 204154 - 0409 3059 43,003
Issue of shares upon settlement A
of the Intercompany Debt gk 3 3005 216,693 - (496%9) - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer of property revaluation ~ WEBFMHAE
Teserve to re[dmed carnings ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁg
upon transfer of an office REmENHEE
premise from property, plant Bl 1 L EFS
and equipment to investment PRHE
properties - - - - - - (139) - - - 139 - - - -
Capital injection by EZihid Iy
non-controlling equity holders HINTS - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0 it
2011 final dividend declared FR-F-EABRE - - - - - - - - - - - (63296)  (63,29) - (63,9)
2012 interim dividend ZE-TEERE 13 - - - - - - - - - - (36960) - (56.966) - (569¢6)
2012 final dividend proposed BECE-CERMRA 13 - - - - - - - - - - (139) 51 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling % ff PH It
equity holders BRRHER A - - - - - - - - - - - - - (16,356)  (16,3%6)
Transfer in/{out) HA/(4) - - - - - - - - 18,569 - (18,569) - - - -
At 31 December 2012 5 o | 146854 1501369 8410¢ S 13100% (LA1L018)F 19,630 185 85,108% 44253 55099T¢  SL391 918659 173896 1092555
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H B EF R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E R —=F T _H=1—HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AL R
Available-
for-sale
Share Share Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium option  Capital  Merger revaluation revaluation reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total  interest equity
Wikt
C#f B BB @3 wh WiE REEL hROBERE KRR &k bt
[ . G Bl Rl IR Wl RS L HE AMER bk ] s WA
Note US§'000  US$000  USS'000  US$'000  USS'000  USPO00  USS'000  US§'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000
Wt Frfr Fufr Fifrn Fitrn Fifri FTx FiTx Fitr Fifr Fifr #ifr #ufn #Fifrn Fifx
(note 34 (note 34 (note 34 (note 34 (note 34
(a)(it) (@) (@) (@) (a)vid)
(k34 (ka4 (WREs4 (k34 (W4
(a)(ii)) @) @) fa)vi))  (a)(vii))
At 1 January 2013 REZ-ZH—-—H 146,854 1,501,569 8410 13,109 (1612918) 29,630 185 8,118 44233 350,997 51300 918,659 173,896 1,002,355
Profit for the year RERH - - - - - - - - - 186211 - 186,211 17448 203,659
Other comprehensive income 4 4l 2 1l 4 -
for the year:
Exchange differences on ST I
translation of foreign ZERER
operations - - - - - - - - 13,632 - - 13,631 1,206 125,838
Deficit on revaluation of HERT R ES
office premises, net #H 15 - - - - - (6) - - - - - (6) - (6)
Share of other comprehensive ~ BE S 2 i :
income of:
Joint ventures RELE - - - - - - - - 4389 - - 4389 - 4389
Associates BEAT - - - - - - - -1 - - 18 -8
Disposal of available-forsale —— H & fHh & 2 B %
investments - - - - - - (21) - - - - (21) B (21)
Total comprehensive income 4 4 2t 4 8 4
for the year - - - - - (6) (21) - 984 186211 - 116,026 19,654 135,680
Issue of shares upon exercise AT At B
of share options Mgk 3 3684 1138 (1) - - - - - - - - 18I - 18I
Capital injection by Je i RS R
non-controlling equity HIN-YN
holders - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,065 1,065
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FREAT - - - - - - - - - - - - 101 101
2012 final dividend declared ~ BRZZ-ZHEKMRE B - - - - - - - - - - (51392)  (51,392) - (51392
2013 interim dividend ZE-SEPIRE 13 - - - - - - - - - (32,3) - (32,308) - (33)
203 final dividend proposed ~ BE_F-ZEAMKE B - - - - - - - - - (61422) 6142 - - -
Dividends paid to pURiE el
non-controlling equity R R
holders - - - - - - - - - - - - (1753)  (17503)
Transfer nf{ou) HA/ () - - - - - - - B0 - (1580 - - - -
At 31 December 2013 I S 5 Y I | 150,538 1519,153* 5,350% 13,109 (1,612918)F 29,624 164*  110998*  74005*  617378% 61420 1,069,122 177,193 1246315
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * GERHIRAB S MBI ERNZ AR

US$757,162,000 (2012: US$620,413,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

5,716.28KR70 (% — 24 1 6f82,041.383T) -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= 3 =
?ﬁ/‘ﬁ é EE ﬁ /Jili ==} %‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2013 RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

2013 2012
—E =g e St ot
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt 7t B Sy arn
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWHZIHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax i 5t i ¥ A1 249,418 303,190
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income SRAT B HA R B WA 7 (9,098) (9,220)
Changes in fair value of investment properties BEWEN D) 7 (1,497) (1,067)
Finance costs T 5 B AR 8 50,842 50,583
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W WEREBZE 9 59,716 52,375
Depreciation of investment properties BaEMEZIE 9 - 1,271
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAF - b S 2 9 2,285 2,737
Depreciation of biological assets stated i A I B E TR R AE
at cost less accumulated depreciation B Z G EZ I
and impairment 9 28,565 25,889
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE K&
and equipment, net W A5 s 1R 9 809 545
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale HETAHEZRE
investment, net 2R (W) B 9 13 (7)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ME—KMEAFRZ W 7 (1,158) —
Impairment/(write back of impairment) JE W B 5 R Ak A,
of trade receivables, net (Yl AL [0 3% ) 35 45 9 1,051 (95)
Net changes in fair value of biological W& A Rl
assets Z ) 6 (10,680) (8,299)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE Al i A B s 18
Joint ventures BB 20(a) (20,969) (14,476)
Associates 5= /NS | 21(a) (13,331) (10,157)
335,966 393,269
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERWA () 17,042 (93,048)
Increase in biological assets A ) B (57,077) (87,351)
Increase in trade and bills receivables R Wi B 5 R ek B SR R Mg (15,497) (13,232)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and AR - &4 KAl
other receivables JRE WA R 3k U A 2,317 26,978
Increase in trade payables JE A B2 5 M R 2 2,654 36,171
Increase/(decrease) in other payables At JE A R S B TR $2
and accruals BRI, (W) 40,860 (33,284)
Cash generated from operations wEEEZHE 326,265 229,503
Interest paid AR B (55,644) (53,862)
Income tax paid [RERRIEEY (53,616) (70,951)
Net cash flows from operating KEWmHmaIHE
activities i & 5 217,005 104,690
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b % H

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B A R 2 A

REBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E R —=F T _H=1—HILFE
2013 2012
B4 —® U
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t B n FL T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REGHZBEHE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEE ¥ B KR 15 (268,971) (172,343)
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment S — I T B 2 A (1,125) -
Increase in other non-current liabilities I B £ £ B 1,198 565
Increase in land lease prepayments TE AT 1 v A B B (11,195) (7,118)
Increase in other non-current assets At I e B8 5 E B (14,706) (7,487)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wt B — SR i I 2 (10,543) -
Disposal of a subsidiary A — KM A 1,009 -
Dividends received from joint ventures WOH G A 3 B B 8,226 8,915
Dividends received from associates W B I 7 4 ] I S 9,608 11,810
Proceeds from disposal of property, B~ R Rn
plant and equipment B e 3K H 2,265 8,059
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HENHEHEZRE
investments ik = 656 13
Repayment from related companies IR 2L ) R K T - 139,491
Receipt from PRC government on factories Ji 55 % 2 i AR v B B
relocation UGk IH 5,408 19,073
Interest received [BLLEIPsS 9,098 9,220
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from &GS () i
investing activities Z B4 (269,072) 10,198
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AMEWNBHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings BT 4 SRAT A K 1,715,503 1,207,587
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 SR AT A 3K (1,274,641) (1,138,745)
Repayment of corporate bonds 1R A R SRR - (64,617)
Capital injection from non-controlling I 42 Tl R A T R
equity holders WAEAR 1,065 710
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits TR (W) WA (27,561) 41,449
Increase in time deposits with maturity B HBB=MAZ
more than 3 months & A7 K (95,931) —
Dividend paid SRR (83,720) (120,262)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT T I o) A 2
equity holders T 3R Bt B (17,523) (16,356)
Proceeds from exercise of share options A 1 Ji 5 AR T A5 5k I 18,157 —
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) MEIEE R E ()
financing activities ZHERBEFH 235,349 (90,234)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Bl 4 B B4 55 601 B 3
CASH EQUIVALENTS 183,282 24,654
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ##IZBE& KRB & HEY 183,154 158,328
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Hb BE 3R 5% B) 2 5% LR H 7,704 172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBEERBEEHFED
AT END OF YEAR 26 374,140 183,154
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Statement of Financial Position
B 7 AR R 3R

31 December 2013 =& —=4+=-H=+—H

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

February 2014.

Arunee Watcharananan

Director # FH

2013 2012
R 2 ot v
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FF FEoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik i B) &
Property, plant and equipment LUE Y & ] 15 320 99
Investments in subsidiaries T B e A B B E 19 1,846,477 1,834,641
Total non-current assets H8 I B E 1,846,797 1,834,740
CURRENT ASSETS )&
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wt PR Jeg 2 ) kI 19 503,659 167,612
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables A HREK - R4 R Il
A W R Ak 25 352 319
Time deposits with maturity over three months 2] H &% = H
Z E WA 26 10,613 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 Rl &5EY 26 72,288 7,717
Total current assets WA 586,912 175,648
CURRENT LIABILITIES I B £
Due to subsidiaries JFEAT B )6 A =] 3Kk JE 19 4,349 23
Other payables and accruals Al A5 R JE % TR B 28 8,241 1,024
Bank borrowings SRAT A R 29 10,106 3,000
Total current liabilities #E ) s 22,696 4,047
NET CURRENT ASSETS o K E 564,216 171,601
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A% E DU B £ 1R
LIABILITIES 2,411,013 2,006,341
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I i B £ £
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 29 394,146 -
Other non-current liabilities oA I it B A 30 543 531
Total non-current liabilities A8 Ik i By £ AR 394,689 531
NET ASSETS & A 2,016,324 2,005,810
EQUITY HE £3
Issued capital OB T A 32 250,538 246,854
Reserves ] 34(b) 1,704,364 1,707,564
Proposed final dividends BEABK S 13 61,422 51,392
TOTAL EQUITY HE 45 28 30 2,016,324 2,005,810

DA% -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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B % R &= MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda and ordinary shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are
located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and 21st Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt

Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

o manufacture and sale of animal feed products and
value-added processed food products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”)

o breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic

animals in Vietnam

o manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products

° manufacture and sale of motorcycles and automotive

parts and trading of machinery
o investment and property holding

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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b E B ER

~ F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for office premises, investment properties, certain available-
for-sale investments and certain biological assets, which have
been measured at fair value or at fair value less costs to sell,
where appropriate. These financial statements are presented
in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“US$000”) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and

dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 3% 3R R M
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as

appropriate.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to [AS 1 Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

IAS 19 (Revised) Employee benefits

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of IFRSs

[FRSs 2009-2011 cycle
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of

IFRS 13, the adoption of these new and revised IFRSs has had

no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs

are as follows:
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in notes 15(e), 16(b) and 18(e) to the financial
statements. The adoption of IFRS 13 does not have any
significant impact on the fair value measurements of the

Group’s assets and liabilities.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
Amendments to IFRS 7and 9 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosure and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments-

Mandatory effective date and

transition disclosures’

Amendments to IFRS10,
[FRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27 (2011)
Separate Financial Statements-

Investment Entities'

Amendments to IAS 32 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation- Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to IAS 36 Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of [FRSs?
[FRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Amendments to a number of [FRSs?

2.2

2.3
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective date not yet established by IASB

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the
Group has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’
returns. They are classified and accounted for as
follows:

(i) Joint operation — when the Group has rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to an arrangement, it accounts for
each of its assets, liabilities and transactions,
including its share of those held or incurred

jointly, in relation to the joint operation.

Joint venture — when the Group has rights
only to the net assets of the arrangements,
it accounts for its interest using the equity

method, as for associates (note 2.4(c)).
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another

entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.
(d) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(i) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(a) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group;

or
(c) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group; or

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

TESHEESE (&)

(c)

BEnT (&)

B A S5 1] A s 4 7 08 L B DA RE 2
EIR B E B R LR - FARE W
B B (AT RIS ) MER
W B A G B A 2 0 sk LB B A
AR FRA > 45 L HE R — 2 o

BEAL

AT — 5 0 J§ ARG L o BPAR A 4R
P B AN L

(i) MASMEANZIEBE A T 5
2

(a) P2 2K 3 W] 4% ) A 4R
[ 5

(b) HARLMEAEKNZE
715 8%

(¢)  Po ARG I B 24 A Y
EEEMABRNKH ;
5,

— 2 -=% % 8§



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Related parties (continued)

(ii)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

and

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(d) BEEAL(HH)

(ii)

L AH B BB AT A AR T R B A

Z—

(a)  FHERE AR R —
£

(by —HEHMAD —HHEZH

(e)

()

BARSAE R (K
SoHBZEAR M
Jiig 22w > B[R] 2R e
A s

% S B A A ) ] —
BETTEBME

—HBEHBE=ZTAER
EHGHBMAEE=
TrZBaEnw s

%L A 4 1 R B 5
RUP RN LR YN
Y B B8 P DR B T R L 2
A W A 5

TR G)H PRI A
P B R P 5 K

W% H R (1) () H P 4
7t B A o N it o R
BN MR
(BN AT)
1 T A TG O\ B
B o

N 8 5% JE 3L T 4 % 5 R E
B H ST 2R T e FE
E AN T T A VN2

—® - =% % ®

— =

79



80

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b % H

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the

deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their

estimated useful lives of 30 years to 50 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Office premises (continued)

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms
2% to 4.5%

6% to 15%

10% to 33.33%

Leasehold land
Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities 9% to 33.33%
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

Where the fair value of investment properties could
not be reliably determined on a continuing basis, such
properties are accounted for using the cost model in
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment i.e., stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on
the straight-line basis to write off the cost of these
investment properties over their estimated useful lives

of 20 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is

accounted for as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(9)

REME

'S <E/E VLR Y Eod - AQ kS
AR A REMEER > ROERE
RELEE v g R TR S ) ) DL B IDUREL £ Mk
AR,/ B A A i I AT 2 2 o 4
B Ay o P s AR AT BT 98 5 SO DA
T H RS A o A 3 S DA
A (BHE 32 5 AC) G i o BRI R
%> BE W SR HOE BUOR & LA Rl
AR DA T B3R UL o BB EA R
AL 538 o 48 R 2 WAL 4 2R i A
it AREEN -

BT A2 IR > 5% 0 S A B¢ R oy T A B
SE1CURH H - B f5 R i 5 P IR A
B> B DLBAS 25 B AT B AT A R
st A R AR o 385 T 3 i
SE204F Z Al st AT B P4 391 DL A L
B A I 5 o

HB AR B A 48 W S 2 AT ] M i
AR IR At B 2 0 A SR i P e,

W SRR M AL R B A
A T BRI o ECE YRR IR
T i 525 R 98 H IR R A R AL AT T
ZEEAMRWMT

—® - =% % ®

— =

83



84

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties (continued)
(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the
period the change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to equity in the property
revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal
of the property, the relevant portion of
the property revaluation reserve realised is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China and Vietnam. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
to sell, except where the fair value cannot be measured
reliably or when the costs are not materially different
from the fair value due to short production cycle, in
those cases they are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and where appropriate, less any

accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs to sell and from
a change in fair value less costs to sell of biological
assets are included in profit or loss in the period in

which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs to sell,
deferred tax assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

(i)

(it)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in “Other
income, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in “General and

administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at

fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the

various estimates within the range cannot be

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(k)

RERHMERMEE (K)

R&18 (#)

(it)

Al AE 2 B ()

H W8 e A% > w7 2 4
HHRUA RG> HRE
B W 4 B8 s 4R 28 008 T 43 o B 4
Al 6L o A4 e 7 L At 2 T K
RNE L g N A
Ak > JE RF 2R A R ks R
P 2 AR AR > EE
% B WL R AR A - e
kg 5t W s s 4 A AT At
B A ek 4 b R AR AR
TR -

IR ETRE S R A R EA
BT SE Hb it 2 D) () % 8 O Al
[REELVAPWIREF RPN 4
ok (b) 76— 2 i ) Py 45 LAl 51
W] Rt S R A B A S R
Tl 50y Sl > B35 S 4R DL

reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair B AR 11 o A AT DA s 18 A R o
value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

- & — =

— =

F F B

89



90

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no

realistic prospect of future recovery.

Include other criteria for writing off amounts
charged to the allowance account against the

carrying amount of impaired finance assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

(i)

(it)

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
deferred income within other payable and accruals at
its fair value. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is

obtainable.

Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the financial guarantee contracts
initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee as income
from guarantee issued. In addition, provision are
recognised if and when (i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in other payables and accruals in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

(i)

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax

assets are recognised, to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)
(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(ii) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the equity holders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using the Black-Scholes pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 33 to the financial

statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at

the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.
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MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, each of the joint ventures in mainland
China is required to make specific contributions to
the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not more
than 20% (the percentage to be determined by each
of the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened
by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government of the
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance. The
PRC government is responsible for the pension liability
to the retired employees. The employees of the joint
ventures are entitled to a monthly pension at their
retirement dates. The joint ventures have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.

Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese
employees who have more than 12 months in service
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of
the average monthly salary for each year of service
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related
implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing from
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month
period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the

accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1
January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after 1
January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis.

(a)

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant

effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements are as follows:

(i)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.

3
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

3

(b)

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Notes 15(e), 16(b) and 18(e) contain information

about the assumptions and estimation uncertainties

relating to valuation of property, plant and equipment,

investment properties and biological assets. Other

information about assumptions and estimation

uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in

a material adjustment in the year ending 31 December
2013 are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss
of the Group’s trade receivables is based
on the evaluation of collectability and the
aging analysis of the trade receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, at
rates ranging from 2% to 33.33% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant
and equipment are placed into productive use.
The estimated useful lives and dates that the
Group places the property, plant and equipment
into productive use reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use

of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE_-F—=4F+_H=+—HIL4E %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(iii)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and
equipment is recognised for the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount when events or changes in
circumstance indicate the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amount
of the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash
generating unit to which they belong, is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. The recoverable amounts are determined
based on fair value less costs to sell which are
based on the best information available to
reflect the amount obtainable at the reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable
and willing parties, after deducting the costs of
disposal. For the estimation of value in use, the
Group’s management estimates future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and chooses a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
(continued)

(iv)

v)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
aging analysis of its inventories at each
reporting date, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and
work in progress based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a
product by product basis at each reporting date

and makes allowances for obsolete items.

Provision for guarantee

Provision for guarantee are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and the amount of that claim on
the Group is measured at the higher of the best
estimate of the expenditure require to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date, and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation. The Group carries out regular
review on the creditability of its customers
which the Group has provided guarantee for.
A reasonable estimate can be made of the
possibility of default and make provisions
accordingly. The ultimate liability due may
vary from the amounts provided and will be
dependent upon the eventual outcome of any

settlement.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has five

reportable operating segments as follows:

° the China agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products and

value-added processed food products in the PRC;

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
the manufacture and sale of value-added processed food

products in Vietnam;

o the biochemical segment is engaged in the manufacture

and sale of chlortetracycline products;

° the industrial segment is engaged in the manufacture
and sale of motorcycles and automotive parts and

trading of machinery; and

o the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing properties owned by the Group and

investments in group companies.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings, income
tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

4
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (HF)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TUEHRKEDIE

VLT $ B A 42 [ 4% T 2 AR 40 3
RBERE R =R F—F 12
H=E=1T—HILEERNZKRA -~ HiE X

The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information

for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the

years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Group

Year ended 31 December 2013

£V GRS R -
I

BECF-=ZHT A= HIREE

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations ~ operations  operations  operations  operations Total
mERY EER LIS
BmER  BRER  RUER 0 TEER  BERER ki
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000
#Frfrx Fr¥r Frfrz Frfr FErfr FErfx
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers HETHHER 3,486,746 1,808,323 118,955 - 266 5,414,290
Intersegment sales AEINZ S8 - - 3,197 - - 3,197
3,486,746 1,808,323 122,152 - 266 5,417,487
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of intersegment sales 4345 ] Z &% £ it 85 (3,197)
Consolidated revenue AW 5,414,290
Segment results R ES
The Group A%ER 211,757 37,882 19,656 (1,877) (5,095) 262,323
Share of profits and losses of: B A4 6 R I
i :
Joint ventures hEfE 5,055 - - 15,914 - 20,969
Associates T A 9,785 - - 3,546 - 13,331
226,597 37,882 19,656 17,583 (5,095) 296,623
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Group

Year ended 31 December 2013

Reconciliation:

Elimination of segment results
Bank interest income

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure*

Additions of other non-current
assets™*

WEIEH

S SR
BATHBHA

S8 7 B

Wil i

Ll BER
HEYE 3
B3
LR YR
B

China
agri-food
operations
i R AR
BREY
US$’000
ELTFT

24,726
187,140

27,620

4

Vietnam
agri-food
operations

R
LLES
US$’000
F T

60,153
93,310

22,319

ReETEEN R

(a) HERLLSE(E)

AL

BEZFR=FT A= —HIEaE

Biochemical ~ Industrial
operations  operations
EREE  LERE
US$’000 US$’000
#rnTrn FErTrz
5,136 21

5,485 96
4,746 -

Investment

and

property
holding
operations
BRIk
IR EH
US$’000
EL T

Total

b
US$’000

F T

(53)
3,690

(50,842)

249,418

530 90,566
363 286,394

- 54,085

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and land lease prepayments, but

excludes assets from acquisition of a subsidiary.

3k

Additions of other non-current assets consist of

(i) assets from acquisition of a subsidiary, and (ii)

additions to non-current biological assets and other

non-current assets.
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N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BRE_-F— =4+ _H=+—HIL4F )%
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFHER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUEHRKLEIE(E)
Group A4
At 31 December 2013 R_-F-=#+_A=1+—H
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations  operations  operations  operations  operations Total
WERY EBRY R RME
BmER  BRER  RUER 0 TEER  ERER W
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#nfrx  FExfr FrTx W FErTfxr @ ExFr  ExTx
Segment assets A E 970,585 1,013,420 109,301 131,776 525,884 2,750,966
Reconciliation: WHENIER
Elimination of intersegment g i € ¢l (500,595)
receivables
Unallocated assets ROME R 509,117
Total assets g 2,759,488
Segment liabilities B 746,707 186,676 22,072 37,302 8,854 1,001,611
Reconciliation: WHENIER
Elimination of intersegment B Z AT S (500,595)
payables
Unallocated liabilities RABA 1,012,157
Total liabilities B 1,513,173
Other segment information s EER
[nvestments in joint ventures REERENRE 20,287 - - 104,148 - 124,435
[nvestments in associates P A F R 36,873 - - 12,781 - 49,654
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)
Group 7K 45 [
Year ended 31 December 2012 BEE—H+HA=1t—HILFE
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
TERR O ERRK 3 SES
RMER O GMER  RER TEER  BREER gLk
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
#Frtr FxTr Fxirz FxTrz FrTrz FxTx
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers HETPIHREF 330,588 1,528,155 129,041 - 25 4959,059
Intersegment sales DREEZHE - - 2,821 - - 2,827
3,301,588 1,528,155 131,868 — 275 4,961,886
Reconciliation: WEIEH
Elimination of intersegment sales 4% #] < 8 £ 4G 8 (2,827)
Consolidated revenue ZaBA 4,959,059
Segment results PEESR
The Group N 221,270 79,370 31,909 (1,463) (5,890) 325,196
Share of profits and losses of: B A i ) B i 4
Joint ventures G- 3 7,097 - - 7,379 - 14,476
Associates B A H 7,179 - - 2,978 - 10,157
235,546 79,370 31,909 8,894 (5,890) 349,829
Reconciliation: WEIEH
Elimination of segment results BN Z B (28)
Bank interest income AT B WA 3972
Finance costs 8 AR (50,583)
Profit before tax Wi B i 303,190
Other segment information i 4 & B
Depreciation and amortisation 78 & # 25,591 50,610 5,619 10 442 82,72
Capital expenditure* A B 3 54,963 122,701 7,741 7 30 185,442
Additions of other non-current  Hi ¥ A Ik
assets** B A — 44,626 946 — — 45,572
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

b % H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(a) Reportable operating segments (continued)

Group

Year ended 31 December 2012

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and land lease prepayments.

ok Additions of other non-current assets consist of

additions to non-current biological assets and other

non-current assets.

Group

At 31 December 2012

Segment assets

Reconciliation:

Elimination of intersegment
receivables

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Elimination of intersegment
payables

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

[nvestments in joint ventures
[nvestments in associates

B AR

A H

4 REIEER(E)

(a) HERLLSE(E)

ASE

BEZF-THTAZTHIREE

*

EEd

I

A PR S AT 3 W BB
TS A B e 2 BT o

T A e D S L R A
Yo A R I A IR R R

REF-ZHE A=+ —H

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
REBH O EERYN BE R
AREE  BREE  BEE  TEEE  BRER W
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
Frfrx  Frfr Frfr FErfr Frifr  Frfr
PEEE 720,663 977,048 83,876 111,400 200,462 2,093,449
WEEH
458 2 JE WOk
i (171,062)
R H B 194,493
Mg 2,116,880
AEARE 380,137 143,970 28,298 41,244 17,245 610,894
WHEHE
A Z B3
185 (171,062)
RO A 584,493
B 1,024,325
Kb BE R
REBAENRYE 18,656 - - 88,647 - 107,303
AR Y 33,802 - - 10,308 - 44,110
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(c)

Geographical information
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)

ReETEEN R

(b) HEER

(i) Revenue from external customers (i) KENKEFZHA

2013 2012

—pe= .

US$’°000 US$’000

FoFi E e on

Mainland China H I O B 3,528,259 3,336,434

Vietnam ge) 1,749,314 1,503,068

Elsewhere F Aty 3th Jy 136,717 119,557

5,414,290 4,959,059

The revenue information shown above is based EFW A E R TR PO A
on the location of the customers. 4338 o

(i) Non-current assets (i)  HFunBEE

2013 2012

s N

US$’000 US$’000

F L FiL E T n

Mainland China o IR K 717,344 485,924

Vietnam 8 T 401,968 354,564

Elsewhere e Ath 3 Ty 27,501 27,441

1,146,813 867,929

The non-current assets information shown EHZERBEEER IR

above is based on the location of assets and
excludes financial instruments and deferred tax

assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,

there was no single external customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

5 REVENUE 5

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents: (i)
the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-

added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances

o]

LGN

We A o IR R SR B 2 8 2> 4R ¢ () BRIEE
Tt B BORF B > B fn BB £ & B 5 P g
Z BB H G RGOHHRE K%

for goods returned and trade discounts; and (ii) rental income EREBWHEWRA -
from investment and property holding operations.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA WT :
Group
N YL
2013 2012
R =4 R
US$’000 US$’000
FF FLFo
Sales of goods from: SHE MR -
China agri-food operations o R R AR SRS
— Feed business — BB 3,486,746 3,301,588
Vietnam agri-food operations R R AR
— Feed business — i Bl B 843,222 785,284
— Farm business o e 858,191 686,385
— Food business - BREE 106,910 56,486
Biochemical operations HALEB 118,955 129,041
5,414,024 4,958,784
Rental income from investment and WERMEERELZ
property holding operations MERA 266 275
5,414,290 4,959,059
6 NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYEEARBEZEEHFE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group’s net changes in fair value of biological assets
represent the difference in fair value less costs to sell from 1
January 2013 to 31 December 2013. Net fair value changes
consist of (i) realised fair value changes of US$64,361,000
(2012: US$56,673,000) in respect of biological assets held
as at 1 January 2013 and (ii) unrealised fair value changes in
biological assets stated at fair value less costs to sell as at 31

December 2013 of US$75,041,000 (2012: US$64,972,000).
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

7  OTHER INCOME, NET 7 Hig AR
An analysis of other income, net is as follows: HA KA FHESHWT
Group
A K H
2013 2012
R = —E T
US$’°000 US$’000
B o e n
Bank interest income SRAT B A 3,690 3972
Other interest income H Al A B A 5,408 5,248
Rental income HERA 2,570 3,229
Government grants BT A Bl 4,441 4,759
Gain on factories relocation TR 2B ik 25 3,448 20,423
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKME LA Z ks 1,158 -
Income from sales of wasted items and SRR 2 8 2
packaging materials BB A 4,398 4,368
Changes in fair value of investment BEWEARMEEE)
properties (note 16) (3] 1,497 1,067
Foreign exchange differences, net AU BT 54 5% B AR (9,764) 964
Others Ho At 1,482 425
18,328 44,455

Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives from
the government in respect of certain investments of the Group in
the agricultural industry, domain of environmental protection and
areas promoted by the government in mainland China. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.
Government grants received for which related expenditure has not yet
been undertaken are included in deferred income in the consolidated

statement of financial position (notes 28 and 30).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 B 7% B A<
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB A A :
Group
ALH
2013 2012
—E A —E T
US$’000 US$’000
F L F T FIL T oL
Interest expense on bank and other AR 2 AR
borrowings wholly repayable SRAT R HoAb A K Z
within five years IS §i| 57,071 53,862
Interest expense on corporate bonds T A Y A AR 25
repayable within 5 years ZF &8 H - 1,074
Total interest expense #ap) B H 57,071 54,936
Less: Interest expense capitalised™ W ARG ARk (6,229) (4,353)
50,842 50,583
* The interest expense have been capitalised at a rate of 4.5%- * FIE 2 & AL T 3542 F) R4.5%F10.3%
10.3% per annum (2012: 4.8%- 14.5%) (ZF— 4 1 4.8%F14.5%) 55 -
9 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 RR B4 Al % R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AL H R ACRT R A BB GEA) T A&
(crediting): JH .
Group
A4H
2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt ik FL T FILFor
Cost of inventories sold O EEE A 4,724,122 4,286,381
Depreciation of property, plant and M-~ WE X
equipment Rz YT 15 59,716 52,375
Depreciation of investment properties BEWEZ I - 1,271
Amortisation of land lease prepayments  FH 7 1 M FH & & # & 17 2,285 2,737
Depreciation of biological assets stated i A T 2R T B Uk A
at cost less accumulated depreciation BREINRZ &Y E
and impairment 2P 18 28,565 25,889
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9 BRBLADE R (&)
Group
A4
2013 2012
2= R~
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Kt 7t B o Ere n
Impairment/(write back of impairment) FE W B B R K
of trade receivables, net WA, (WA Bl 48 ) & 24(a) 1,051 (95)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K
and equipment, net By iR 809 545
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HERHEZ
available-for-sale investment B&mER, (k) 13 (7)
Minimum lease payments of properties, ME - WERESZ
plant and machinery under REMEZRKHE
operating lease £} 3k 4 5 36,217 32,321
Auditors’ remuneration A% S T 4 1,461 1,508
Employee benefit expenses g B A % H
(including directors’ remuneration (EFEE M4 —
—note 10): Ff}5£10)
Wages, salaries and benefits in kind TH] -~ #H& RIEB S 25 302,371 272,440
Pension scheme contributions PE N L 21,224 15,343
323,595 287,183
Rental income* BB A* (2,836) (3,504)
Foreign exchange differences, net AW Py 28 B 9,764 (964)
* The amount comprised rental income of US$266,000 (2012: * AR NG REE R E R E
US$275,000) included in revenue from the investment and BWAZHERA26.68FE L (ZFE—Z
property holding operations and of US$2,570,000 (2012: AR 275830 ) Ko A v I R Ak A A S
US$3,229,000) included in other income from the China agri- BHMBRAZHEWA257.08ET (ZF
food operations. — AR 132298 3%0C) -
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b % H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

10

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of

B A R 2 A

10 EEME

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, on a name basis, is as

follows:

Salaries,
allowances,
pension schemes
contributions
and benefits

AR 6 22 e b v BB B A s 8 W R A 55 161
B E R A WERFEESETMENT

Fees in kind Bonus Total
B HEHG
Bk &M%
e RIERENG 14 k]
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Mt FFi Fi i FEnFi FEFI
Year ended 31 December 2013 KE-% =
+ZAZEF—RIREE
Executive directors: iTHES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont R A - 1,184 - 1,184
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Bk (iii) - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi FHARAE - 532 - 532
M. Soopakij Chearavanont CEPN - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HE R E - 759 401 1,160
M. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglergg 4 - 471 58 529
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HEREE - 833 241 1,074
M. Suphachai Chearavanont e - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® (iii) - - - -
- 3,779 700 4,479
Non-executive director: FPfTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont WA - - - -
Independent non-executive BT ES
directors:
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B IR 31 - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isres & 4 31 - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul 564 31 - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnve; Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 (ii) 31 - - 31
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach Yanyong Phuangrach& 4 (iv) 15 - - 15
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon& 3 (i) 8 - - 8
147 - - 147
Total directors' remuneration EEMEAH 147 3,779 700 4,626
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EE=M<E (&)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances,
pension schemes
contributions
and benefits
Fees in kind Bonus Total
HEE R
Bk S %
s RIS &N 4 ok
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wit FIF T F#7L T FLF FILF T
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E_F— 4
+ZH=ZF B EE
Executive directors: HATES -
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont e g A - 1,232 - 1,232
Mr. Adirek Sripratak B (iii) - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi e E - 532 - 532
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont CIEP - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin SRS - 747 - 147
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg s 4 - 435 52 487
Mr. Anan Athigapanich WER S, - 821 - 821
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont e S - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan& (iii) - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho il -8 e A (vi) - - - -
Mr. Damrongdej Chalongphuntarat 1 2 3¢ 5 4 (vii) - 122 - 122
- 3,889 52 3,941
Non-executive directors: FPfTES
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont o ve 1R g - - - -
Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert i 4 7 5
(Mr. Poon Yee Man Alwin as (B BB
alternate director) FH) (v) - - - -
Independent non-executive B BTSSR
directors:
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew  F BS54 31 - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJ& 4 31 - - 31
M. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul /84 31 - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej g 4 (ii) - - - -
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach Yanyong Phuangrach¥5 4 (iv) - - - -
93 - - 93
Total directors’ remuneration §$@H$ﬁ%§§ﬁ 93 3,889 52 4,034
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N J B A R D
Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10
(continued)
Notes:
(i) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 25

September 2013

(ii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 31
December 2012

(iii)  Appointed as executive director on 1 April 2012

(iv) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 31
December 2012 and resigned on 26 June 2013

(v) Resigned as non-executive director on 31 December 2012

(vi) Resigned as executive director on 1 April 2012

(vii)  Passed away on 24 January 2012

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: nil).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

11

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2012: three) directors. Details of their remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. The remuneration (including salaries,
allowances and benefits in kind) of the remaining two (2012:
two) non-directors, was approximately US$2,193,000 (2012:
US$1,402,000) in total.

TfusSHEHES

SEN > IR R TR B B (SR —
4 34r) EH > H4& 23t Oy L
BEEELO o R F2AL (SR —24F « 240) k&S
Z WA (L5~ R K& IR B4R %) Je 4
21938 FIL (ZF— 24 : 140.28 K I0)

2013 2012
e S o Sy
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ERHH A HH
US$577,000 to US$641,000 577,00037E £ 641,0003€ J6
(equivalent to HK$4,500,001 (FH 14,500,001 % 76 2
to HK$5,000,000) 5,000,000% 7T) - 1
US$769,000 to US$833,000 769,0003% Jt. #833,0003% 0
(equivalent to HK$6,000,001 to (FH B J%6,000,001 #s 76 =
HK$6,500,000) 6,500,000% JG) - 1
US$968,000 to US$1,032,000 968,000347C £ 1,032,00034 78
(equivalent to HK$7,500,001 to (FH 747,500,001 800 &
HK$8,000,000) 8,000,000% JG) 1 -
US$1,161,000 to US$1,226,000 1,161,00036 6 % 1,226,00054 76
(equivalent to HK$9,000,001 to (FH  1#%9,000,001 % 76 2
HK$9,500,000) 9,500,000%% 7T) 1 -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

12

INCOME TAX

b B B A

R 2

12

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the

year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in

Hong Kong during the year (2012: nil).

The subsidiaries operating in mainland China and Vietnam are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2012: 25%) on their

taxable income according to the PRC and Vietnam corporate

income tax laws. In accordance with the relevant tax rules

and regulations in the PRC and Vietnam, certain subsidiaries

of the Group in PRC and Vietnam enjoy various income tax

exemptions or reductions.

o]

Frig®

A AR [ I A AR B R A T A U e AT ] R R B
WA > Bt AR T A 47 JBE P9 AR A 9 ) 74 B 488 A

(R4 ) o

AR v B K o e g A 3 B S BB 1) > A
o 848 2 S 2 ) R M R M A B R
25% (= — 24 £ 25%) B A o AR BR
i 0 B i 2 R B B R k) AR B R
TP v 10 e b R T B 4 W A R

W B e B 2 A

Group
A A
2013 2012
Y Y Y
US$’000 US$’000
FFx Enyarn
Current — mainland China AAE — o Ok
Charge for the year AR JE 3 58,908 61,447
(Over-provision)/under-provision (%), PElik
in prior years (4,942) 601
Current — Vietnam AR — R
Charge for the year A X 2,599 2,632
Over-provision in prior years 25 - (4,091)
Deferred (note 31) WBIE (B 5E31) (10,806) 7,094
Total tax expense for the year 2 A IE 44 3 45,759 67,683
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

12

INCOME TAX (continued)

b E B E R 2

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory rates for mainland China and Vietnam in

which the Group principally operates to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax

rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

12 FriS® (&)

e v 1 K e B (A 5 T 2 B T B ) 1Y
58 LA FT S DA OB &R BB S i
M aE iR > Sm B (ML ERR) EHK
PR Z MR 2HMT

follows:
Group
rE
2013 2012
L —B—
US$’000 % US$’000 %
FiLFr FEx T
Profit before tax 3 B A i A1 249,418 303,190
Tax expense at statutory tax rate EL STy S N ]
BB 3 62,355 25.0 75,798 25.0

Lower tax rates for specific e o A8 SO I B R

provinces or enacted by local AL Z AR B 2

tax authority (21,148) (8.5) (22,451) (7.4)
Effect of withholding tax at A R P KL

5% or 10% on the distributable Mgas - GELER

profit of the Group’s T 7% W) ] 43 ) T

subsidiaries, joint ventures FHE BBE5 % 10%

and associates in mainland 2B

China (4,382) (1.8) 9,972 3.3
Effect of withholding tax on Bl R

technical service fee MR 9,726 3.9 9,006 3.0
Adjustments in respect of AAE AT A DA AR BE

current tax of prior years FLH T % (4,942) (2.0) (3,490) (1.2)
Profits and losses attributable FEAG & B K

to joint ventures and associates /N R D)3

i 15 (8,575) (3.4) (6,158) (2.0)

Income not subject to tax I T R B (1,681) (0.7) (3,190) (1.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax PCE LS 7,581 3.0 7,840 2.6
Tax losses not recognised R ARG E 6,896 2.8 1,797 0.6
Tax losses from prior years utilised B DA AR B R M 1 (271) (0.1) (804) (0.3)
Others oAt 200 0.1 (637) (0.2)
Tax expense at the Group’s AR A BB R

effective tax rate w3 H B 2 5 45,759 18.3 67,683 223

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
129

— 2 -=% % 8§



130

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

12

13

INCOME TAX (continued) 12

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$8,958,000 (2012: US$5,020,000)
and US$2,862,000 (2012: US$3,879,000), respectively, are
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

FriEwt ()

AHE [ AN S8 A SE R A R Z R R4
#8958 30 (2 — 4 : 502.08 3£ 7t)
28628 K0 (ZF— 4 1 387.98 K T) °
WEBIHECESELL G 2R N[ E
B A 3 T s W R A R s 1 ] e

DIVIDENDS 13 BE
Group
A 4L
2013 2012
2= —EFE -8
US$’000 US$’000
FiL T B on
Interim — HK$0.010 (equivalent to v 3] — B B I
approximately US 0.129 cents) W] 4 B B S8 10,0108 T
(2012: HK$0.018 (equivalent to (FH 2514 #10.1293:41l)
approximately US 0.231 cents)) TR 0 0.018%IT
per ordinary share and convertible (FH AR #90.2313€A410) )
preference share 32,328 56,966
Proposed final — HK$0.019 R AR W — I A % %
(equivalent to approximately B 46 B 48 4 BE0.019% I8
US 0.245 cents) (2012: HK$0.016 (R 4577 #90.2453641l)
(equivalent to approximately (ZF—Z4 1 0.016¥0
US 0.205 cents)) per ordinary share (CFH 0% #10.20554410) )
and convertible preference share 61,422 51,392
93,750 108,358

The proposed final dividend for the year is calculated based on
the number of shares in issue on the date of this annual report
and subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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b E B ER

~ F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the deemed issuance
of all deferred payable shares (as defined in note 34(a)(iii)
to the financial statements) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share

options of the Company.

14
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5

b#% B B & R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

amounts is based on the following data:

AAFARREGzEREN (F)

o B A T i 3 i ) < A AR R DA T MR R

=

2013 2012
2= —E -
US$’000 US$’000
By in B on
Earnings i A
Profit for the year attributable to FRA BB B R AS R
shareholders of the Company, LR Pl N/ |
used in the basic and diluted Ji% 3R Ay 5 K
earnings per share calculation 186,211 204,154
2013 2012
2= S~
Number of ordinary shares and W 3 i B T 6t
convertible preference shares 185 i i
Weighted average number of F T st 55 g 3 55 A i )
ordinary shares and convertible 2 R A
preference shares in issue during 8 508 B T A - 35 3

the year, used in the basic earnings

per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average

B 5 U R R

25,005,365,378

24,135,280,643

number of ordinary shares and A 46 34 St M

convertible preference shares: JnRE S

— Deferred payable shares — 0 4B JRE A B A - 550,090,103

— Share options — Jif e 179,424,805 394,375,490
Weighted average number of JH A w1 55 5 4

ordinary shares and convertible i ) 2 5 9 M K

preference shares, used in the diluted w46 A 5 ik

earnings per share calculation i RE - 35 8 25,184,790,183 25,079,746,236

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

- & — =

— =

F F B



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2013 E R —=4FT_H=1—HIL4)E
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% BERRE
Group AE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment faciliies in progress Total
il %8 ity
(B4 5 TEBT  WRRER  RWARHE Bt TRIE i
Note US§000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§°000 US§°000 Us§000

it Fifr #ifr Fifn Frfr Fifr Frfn Fifn
(notes (a), ~ (notes (a),(c) (notes (c))
(b,) (c) and (&) and ())
(Wt - (Wita) (o) (i)
) (&) Kd)

At 1 January 2013: REF-25-A-H:
Valuation (K1 41,152 - - - - - 41,152
Cost ik - 336,113 489,521 19,198 18,598 1L46 1065176
Accumulated depreciation and R TERRNE
impairment - (150,563) (306,215) (44,317) (16,514) - (517,609)
Net carrying amount RS 41,152 206,150 183,306 34,881 12,084 111,146 588,719
Net cartying amount: R
At January 2013 REF-ZE-H-H 41,152 206,150 183,306 34,881 12,084 111,146 588,719
Additons ¥ - 21,198 12,664 20612 3,064 217,662 275,00
Deficit on revaluation, net EhERTE (6) - - - - - (6)
Acquisition of a subsidiary - MEAR - - - - - 8,763 8,763
Depreciation provided during the year ERHE 9 (795) (19,845) (24,003) (11,459) (3,614) - (59,716)
Transfer in/(out) #1/(1) - 61,088 4978 3,233 in (109,772) -
Transfer to fnvestment properties L EES 16 - (759) - - - - (159)
Disposals ik - (1,706) (964) (204) (200) - (3,074)
Exchange realignment Eidg (183) 4,147 3445 41 353 2,039 10222
At31 December 1013 REF-ZRF 20 40,168 2170073 219,426 47484 12,160 29,838 819,349
At 31 December 2013: REZ-ZE+2R=4-H
Valuation Kl 40,168 - - - - - 40,168
Cost Ak - 3,11 547,999 111,556 31,360 229,838 1,364,474
Accumulated depreciation and impairment THTEREE - (173,448) (328573) (64,072) (19,200) - (585,293)
Net carrying amount Kl 40,168 170,273 219426 47484 12,160 129,838 819,349
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 VX -BERRE(E)
(continued)
Group AEE (&)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport~ Construction
premises huildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
[kl %E HER
[Fd &2 TEEY  REREE  REARE fHH TRIE 4
Note US§000 US§ 000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000
H# Frfr Fiti it Fiti Fiti Fifr it
(notes (@), (notes (a)(c) (notes (c))
(b, (c) and (e) md (0)
Wit Witn) (o) (i)
) (&) Kd)
At 1 January 2012: REF-ZH-A-H:
Valuation i 38,233 - - - - - 3§33
Cost WA - 304987 16547 6,154 131 533 95041
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BB R - (139,384) (204971) (39513) (18,264) - (491,130)
Net cartying amount Riig 38,033 165,603 168,466 1181 15,867 55,33 411148
Net carrying amount: TR
At 1 January 2012 RoF-ZE-R-H 38,033 165,603 168,466 17641 15,867 55,333 411,143
Additions e - 31419 1935 17145 4316 103,454 176,69
Surplus on revaluation, net Ea 4103 - - - - - 4703
Depteciaion provided during the year ERiE 9 (1184) (17,198) (2199%) (8.790) (3,105) - (52.375)
Transfer in/(out) #A/ () 35,01 18563 (829) (4.882) (48,131) -
Transfer to investment properties LERR S 16 (500) (40617) - - - - (5,17
Disposels ik - (3,97) (1939) (1) (1) - (8,604)
Exchange realignment it - o4l 86! 165 116 490 108
At31 December 2012 O e 41,151 206,150 183306 181 12,084 111,146 388,119
At31 December 2012: REB-ZEFZAZ-H:
Valuation fhfé 41,152 - - - - - 41,151
Cost K - 356,113 489,501 19,198 28,598 111,146 1,063,176
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BB R - (150,563) (306,215) (44317) (16,514) - (517,609)
Net carrying amount Ria 41,151 206,150 183,300 34881 1104 111,146 588,719
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -RBREEZE (&)
(continued)
Company b NN

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment

TR AR~ S RO A wk

2013 2012
TR DA E—TF
US$’000 US$’000
By n B an
At 1 January: W—H—H:
Cost JRA 1,274 1,249
Accumulated depreciation BEtrE (1,175) (1,108)
Net carrying amount R T M 99 141
Net carrying amount: i i R
At 1 January wr—H—H 99 141
Additions W 363 30
Depreciation provided during the year ENFHRITE (142) (71)
Disposals & - (1)
At 31 December BREHZH=+—H 320 99
At 31 December: W+HZA=+—8:
Cost A 1,639 1,274
Accumulated depreciation Bl (1,319) (1,175)
Net carrying amount MR i 3 1 320 99
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Notes: M Et -
(a) The Group’s office premises and industrial buildings are held (a) ARG M R TR AE W
under the following lease terms: T
Mainland
Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
Hi L PN < [og] Ham
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FIL T FILFT FILF T
Cost or valuation as at W_F—=41T_H
31 December 2013: Z=r—HZ ARG
Long term leases EHME 27,169 - - 27,169
Medium term leases SR EiN - 257,538 199,182 456,720
27,169 257,538 199,182 483,889
Cost or valuation as at R_F—_#HT_H
31 December 2012: Z=F—HZ A
Long term leases R & 27,338 - - 27,338
Medium term leases GEL Ny - 224,598 145,929 370,527
27,338 224,598 145,929 397,865

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been

US$17,145,000 (2012: US$17,639,000).

The revaluation deficit of US$6,000 (2012: surplus of
US$3,875,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 31).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery in mainland China (2012: an office premise of the
Group in Hong Kong and certain of the Group’s buildings
and machinery in mainland China) with an aggregate net
carrying amount of US$5,825,000 (2012: US$32,807,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group,

respectively (note 29(a)).

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s industrial buildings with
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$7,827,000 (2012:
US$5,969,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates.

Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Fair values are categorised into three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined by reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

Level 2: Observable inputs which fails to meet
Level 1, and not using unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for

which market data are not available.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment

(continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

EELES

Office premises

A H
15 ¥ BERRZE (E)
Mat : (%)
(e) Yy~ B Bk A AR R (A
(i) RRAEZ R ()
TESNDREBRAEHRNZY
¥ M PR R R R R Y
2 SR > W I R o s o o SR
135RA R M7 7 2 8 34 Py =R AR
Al e
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013
categorised into
MR-F—=ZF1TH=Z+—HARHEGRZSH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
38 iy =400 A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
s E e E E
_ - 40,168 40,168

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type

B i 16 5 ¥

Office premises in Hong Kong

BT 7 9 1Y T SR A T T 35 b v

Office premises in mainland China

A v I8 K o P S A 35 e ik

Valuation technique

Market comparison approach

Market comparison approach
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Key unobservable inputs

FABER S

Estimated price of US$27,080 per square metre
B 5 R Z Al iHE 27,0805 5T
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BERRE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) ek : ()
(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e) W~ R R A REE R (4)
(continued)
(i) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (ii) T B 5= R LA R B
Office premises of the Group were revalued based on A 2 BT A R TR
valuations performed by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) HEE () GRAF (—FKHH
Limited, a firm of external independent and qualified TR S T B K B AR B R
valuers. The Group’s finance team has discussions ) FVEZ SEME a2 o FAE AT
with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and B 2 T HE AT S BTN N AR
results once a year when the valuation is performed [ = Fot 75 ] Bk 3 BEL ST B ) AR O
for annual financial reporting. SEAR B AR B A T o
The Fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong AL T U R v B K B Y i g
and mainland China are determined using market ARMETI TSI EEE » 2%
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation FE AL B 3 00 3 1) S 0 B B AE (B oF
or sales prices of comparable properties on a price per Jk) o
square metre basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price P05k 2 G EHEA R BT
per square metre would result in a significant increase/ THEBEREERTEZ ARMEEK
decrease in the fair value of the office premises. EFH ST
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 mam
Group
A5
2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt i L T 7T FoT Tt
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—HZRmE 26,513 9,086
Changes in fair value o A 5 ) 7 1,497 1,067
Transfer from owner-occupied properties 1 H H 4 3% 15 759 500
Transfer from investment properties W DL AR A Y
measured using the cost model PRz B E Y% - 15,860
Exchange realignment e 56, 3 4% 768 -
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZHA=1+—HZEmHE 29,537 26,513
Notes: M -
(a) All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a) B B 3858 A b B e % B R

mainland China and are held under medium term leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

16

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s invesetment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

Investment properties

A H
16 REWE (&)
Mt - (%)
(b) BE YA RAEE R
(i) AR Z RS
TR S BIR A ] 2
Wy IR LA R A RE >
iz ] W B o R B SR 135 A 2
Al 2 A By =AU o
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013
categorised into
R-F—=Z2H1T_HA=Z1+—HARMHGRZ S
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
53— i3 =00 A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILF FILF FoLF oo FILF o
- - 29,537 29,537

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the
valuation models.

Type

T % 16 75 %

Factories and farms in mainland China

AT v I K B F R T 355 be i 3%

Commercial buildings in mainland
China
A7 Y R A B Y T A

T 385 b ik

Residential buildings in mainland
China
A7 Y R A B Y A S A

T 355 L e s

Valuation technique

Market comparison approach

Market comparison approach

Market comparison approach
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A R 5 = AU I 4 S AR TR R
FAAR B B8 1 2 Al 4T 5 B Al {4
BV DRI NI R A

Key unobservable inputs

A BN 2B

Estimated price of US$8-US$550 per square
metre

B J7 K Z Al A 85RTE-550K% 78

Estimated price of US$494 per square metre
B F J5 R Z Al s M 4945850

Estimated price of US$3,654-US$5,268 per
square metre

B 05 ok Z A FHE A% 3,654 J8-5,268F I8
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued)

(i)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Castores Magi
(Hong Kong) Limited and Beijing Huadeheng Assets
Evaluation Co., Ltd., firms of external independent
and qualified valuers. The Group’s finance team
has discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results once a year when the

valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the investment properties are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent quotation or sales prices of
comparable properties on a price per square metre

basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price

per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

17

LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HBENITHEEE
Group
AR
2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000
Bt it B E S
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— H R A 44,872 40,241
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — R Bt JBg 8 ) 3,912 -
Additions W HE 11,194 8,746
Amortisation provided during the year AN T IR B Y 9 (2,285) (2,737)
Disposal iR - (1,628)
Disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A F (277) -
Exchange realignment EE 5o, ) % 877 250
Carrying amount at 31 December P+ _H=+—HEHmHE 58,293 44,872
Analysis of leasehold land by location: WIEFE LT EALE T F ¢
Mainland China H B oK 38,536 23,969
Vietnam ol g 19,757 20,903
58,293 44,872
Notes: Viikia

(a) All leasehold land of the Group are held under medium term

leases.

(b) At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
US$559,000 (2012: US$533,000) were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 29(a)).

(c) As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of land lease

prepayments included the current-portion of US$2,297,000.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

(c)

A 43 T 7 A LR G g PR AL o

M_B—Z4F+A=Z+—H REHRZ
T RUE LA IR (495598 3658 (Z
F—TA 53380 o CARRARE
T SRATAE AR Z A (K 3E29(a)) o

Mo-F—=Z44+A=+—H0 > Fft Lt
FH 5 2 VR v B A U B 4 9229.788 36
f[; °

— 2 -=% % 8§



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 18 4£YEE
Group rE
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
FHERE  EHEE- A
RER R Mg E At
Note US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
Wik FnFi FEnFi F i F i
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Wit(a) (W) (W)
At 1 January 2013: R_B—-=H—H—H:
At cost less accumulated A, R R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JA 82,316 - 32,024 114,340
Accumulated depreciation and REHTE RN
impairment (18,654) - - (18,654)
63,662 - 32,024 95,686
At fair value less costs to sell O R AE V9 B B AR - 197,112 - 197,112
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Net carrying amount: T
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=H—H—H 63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Increase due to purchases/raising TR B2/ 7 388 82,651 513,185 289,856 885,692
Net changes in fair value less AR RAZ D)
costs to sell ] - 10,680 - 10,680
Depreciation provided during T
the year 9 (28,565) - - (28,565)
Decrease due to sales IR 85 % 4 (39,088) (469,578) (289,468) (798,134)
Decrease due to culling PRI S 10 i (14,470) (16,011) - (30,481)
Exchange realignment [ b, 3 4 (967) (3,058) (487) (4,512)
At 31 December 2013 REZF—-Z8+2A
=1+—H 63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
At 31 December 2013: R-F-=ZH+"H=+—H:
At cost less accumulated BB IR A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JA 83,874 - 31,925 115,799
Accumulated depreciation R Rk g
and impairment (20,651) - - (20,651)
63,223 - 31,925 95,148
At fair value less costs to sell A R R AR - 232,330 - 232,330
63,223 232,330 31,925 327,418
Analysed into: SAHWT
Current biological assets BSR4 18,614 232,330 31,925 282,869
Non-current biological assets R WA 44,609 - - 44,609
63,223 232,330 31,925 327,478
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
M#®% BB AR QA

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (&)
Group (continued) AEE (&)
Current Other
Breeders livestock— biological
and layers swine assets Total
HHEE HHEE- Al
& W& R Bt
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wik FEr Fr T FEFI Eyon
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Mt (a) (HtiEb)) (Mt ()
At 1 January 2012: R-F—ZH—H—H:
At cost less accumulated AT B R R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BAR 71,290 - 11,595 82,885
Accumulated depreciation and REHTE R
impairment (12,042) - - (12,042)
59,248 - 11,595 70,843
At fair value less costs to sell O o AE U B B AR - 149,035 - 149,035
59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
Net carrying amount: W TR
At 1 January 2012 RoF—"HE—~H—H 59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
Increase due to purchases/raising A i B/ B i 24 73,550 405,536 294,795 773,881
Net changes in fair value less AR AT
costs to sell FHE - 8,299 - 8,299
Depreciation provided during R
the year 9 (25,889) - - (25,889)
Decrease due to sales ) 8 8 I 9k (17,041) (359,20) (274,703) (650,953)
Decrease due to culling P I = T (26,994) (8,685) - (35,679)
Exchange realignment T 3, ) 788 2,136 337 3,261
At 31 December 2012 I S O Y 5 [y | 63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
At 31 December 2012: RZF-ZHFZH=+—H:
At cost less accumulated JAR i, R T A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost A 82,316 - 32,024 114,340
Accumulated depreciation R Sk g
and impairment (18,654) - - (18,654)
63,662 - 32,024 95,686
At fair value less costs to sell A SRS B A - 197,112 - 197,112
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Analysed into: AHWT
Current biological assets B AYEE 16,288 197,112 32,024 245,424
Non-current biological assets FEE G 41,374 - - 47374
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening pigs, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of embryonated

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate, mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

18
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18

Notes: (continued)
(b) Current livestock—swine

Current livestock—swine are piglets and fattening swines
and are stated at fair value less costs to sell. Fair values are
determined based on prevailing transaction prices, and where
transaction prices are not available for certain age groups,
based on prevailing transaction prices of other age groups,

with adjustments taking into account difference in weight.
(c) Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

(d) An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

Livestock BE
Aquatic KB

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs real-
time update on stock movement to project the overall weight.
For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method to

project the overall weight.
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it

2013 2012

TR DA R T
Tons Tons

L g

163,000 151,000
12,000 11,000
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement of biological assets

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS

13 Fair value measurement.

WA E -

Current livestock — Swine

18

£YEE (&)
Wit + ()
() H:H¥EAE A Al it it
(i) ARMZHH
LEZn S T ET S NIRRT
VA R R 2 A > 3

e o W e e R R SE 13 98 A 2 4
Al 7 Z 5 oy = WA o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013

categorised into

REZF-=Z=4FZH=Z+HARMGREZ 58

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
53— i3 =00 A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILFi FoLFoo FoLF oo F T
- - 197,112 197,112

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEZZ-=#+TZA=1—HIE
AENEN > S5 — SR AR Z
VAR YN SR
ARG T 2 BURE TS R R
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18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Type Valuation technique
oE i {77 %
Current livestock - swine Market comparison approach
HNEE-RE i35 g
(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of current livestock — swine is
performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series

of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and
fattening swine are determined based on transaction

price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2013, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair

value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$23,016,000 (2012: US$19,416,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

£YEE (H)
Wit - (80
() EMVETE M/ RALH B (A

(i) ARG Z RS (H)

Key unobservable inputs

B2 Y

Transaction prices of:

- Suckling swine US$61.7 to US$72.3 per head

- Weanling swine US$71.6 to US$118.2 per head
- Fattening swine US$2.3 to US$2.4 per kg
Rk

- ARBHTELENIET

- MEBEILETEILIET

- BRREBATLIELELAET

(i)  FHE=RAR MR EF

HMEE -MEZI L RMETIR
7 o A 4 T A TR S T
BE ML RIAE RENR
R AT A A

R AEAETE A TR B o L
B FEREREZ A RMET)
AR 98 4 B A2 B R M S AR T
% o

BEMARMEMAFHEERS
e B Fm B
T#H R_F—-=Z4H+_H
Z=+—H > BERGEE LT
S I ER10% » BB A AL
Fht% BT R Bk2,301.68 300
(B — T4 1 1,941.68385C0)
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B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RKEL T poEz
Company
A2 H]
2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Y an FEoLFoo
Investments in subsidiaries, included PG L 42 g
in non-current assets: A8 I B E
Unlisted shares, at cost ARG A Z Ik
b A 1,846,477 1,834,641
Due from subsidiaries, included JRE Wt i g 2 W] K JE -
in current assets: A2 7 I B E
Gross amount Fok ] (a) 511,962 175,862
Impairment ik fE (b) (8,303) (8,250)
503,659 167,612
Due to subsidiaries, included in JRE A5k Bt J&§ A W] R JE >
current liabilities £ 8 7 I B A (a) (4,349) (23)
Interests in subsidiaries T B e 2\ ) R 25 2,345,787 2,002,230
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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19

Notes:

(a)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

There was no movement in the provision for impairment of

the amounts due from subsidiaries during the years ended 31

December 2013 and 2012, except for exchange difference.

follows:

Company name

2wl 24

&

CP China Investment Limited

Chengdu Chia Tai Company
Limited

S IE KA R4 7] 6

Chia Tai (China) Investment
Co., Ltd.
ER(HE) B#EHRAR

Chong Qing Chia Tai
Co., Ltd.t
B IE KA PR A6

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration paid-up capital/

and operations registered capital

C#fT Rk
kB B RA
BHEE CRE MR A A

Cayman Islands/ US$79,228,000

Hong Kong 79,228,0003& 7t
PHEMEFi

PRC/ US$6,300,000

Mainland China 6,300,0003 6
w7 R K

PRC/ US$196,695,333

Mainland China 196,695,333 76
ook

PRC/ US$5,920,000

Mainland China 5,920,0003 6
w7 R K

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

RKE AR RS (&)

B W 2 I A R D 2 s ST SRR A - SR L
T 486 1 A 25 a0

(b) BME_E-ZHRF-"H1T2H
S —H RN > 3 W E A R K
TE VAR A 2 S5 ) o E 30 26 BLBR AP o

(c) KEEMBAFRZFEREWT ¢

Percentage of
attributable equity Principal
interest held by activities
Company Group

A F5 A R 4 b
Y. NN A4 FEEH
100.0% 100.0% Investment
holding
BE R
- 70.0% Manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
JE 8 85 & B Rl
- 100.0% Investment
holding and
trading of
raw materials
B R R
B R 5
- 60.0% Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

7 B 8 Rt
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 RKEBATMWER (&)
Notes: (continued) Mfak : (51)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R
RE R, BRBA JRE A R A 1B BE T 43 e

2 W 44 1 8 1 C it M 3 A< v Y. /N A AR FEEH
Huludao Chia Tai Husbandry PRC/ RMB28,100,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 28,100,000 A\ B % and sale of
HESERERARATY g b kKR animal feed
E § Y 5 R
Inner Mongolia Chia Tai PRC/ US$8,190,700 - 90.4%® Manufacture
Co., Ltd.ti Mainland China 8,190,7003% 50 and sale of
RNE - N A rh g B ok animal feed
JE S B & BB
Jiangsu Huaiyin Chia Tai PRC/ US$3,621,000 - 88.0% Manufacture
Co., Ltd.ti Mainland China 3,621,00034 70 and sale of
L R i B IR KA B 2 | @ Ea il PN animal feed
7 8 75 & R
Kunming Chia Tai Co., Ltd.™ PRC/ US$6,405,300 - 92.4%" Manufacture
B IE KA PR A " @ Mainland China 6,405,3003 78 and sale of
=P PN animal feed
2E S 8 s R
Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd®™ PRC/ US$8,779,000 - 94.6%" Manufacture
B IE KA BR A | Mainland China 8,779,0003 70 and sale of
LD PN animal feed
E $ 8 s R
Nanning Chia Tai Animal PRC/ US$6,774,500 - 91.6%" Manufacture
Husbandry Company Mainland China 6,774,5003 70 and sale of
Limited™ T el N animal feed
MEEREFRARAF E § 8 7 R
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19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 RKEBARNER (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Notes: (continued) Mt : (4)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by
Company name and operations registered capital Company Group
ST R
RE S, BRBA JE AN 5 A B RE E 43 Lk
NGEAR o 1 O i fH I A T A PN/ | A E
Nantong Chia Tai Co., Ltd.(® PRC/ RMB110,060,025 - 60.0%
B IE KA R4 w00 Mainland China 110,060,025\ R
R K
Nanyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd.®™ PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 91.0%®
MBEIERERAR® Mainland China 50,000,000 A\ & ¥
w7 R I K
Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural PRC/ 1US$8,800,000 - 100.0%
Development Co., Ltd."" Mainland China 8,800,0003% 50
TRIERBEBREGMRAT dE bk R
Shaanxi Chia Tai Co., Ltd.™) PRC/ US$6,729,100 - 96.0%
BEVg 1E KA PR A 7] ) Mainland China 6,729,1003 6
LA PN
Shuangliu Chia Tai Company PRC/ US$4,000,000 - 70.0%
Limited Mainland China 4,000,000 70
3 1E KA R 2 w6 LD N
Tianjin Chiatai Feed Tech PRC/ US$23,812,500 - 100.0%
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 23,812,5003 70
FHEIE KA BHR A BRA R v K B
Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd.®™ PRC/ US$3,750,000 - 100.0%
W ERARAF ™ Mainland China 3,750,0003% JG
w7 R K

Principal

activities

FEEH

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

7 8 8 & Rt

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

A 5 25 s A Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 5 25 5 R Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 5 5 5 Bk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

TS B 85 5 Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

T 85 Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

7 B 8 Rt
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

19

RKE AR RS (&)

Mt (4

(c)

(#)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities
Company name and operations registered capital Company Group
ST R
RE R, BRBA JRE A R A 1B BE T 43 e
2 W 44 1 8 1 C it M 3 A< v Y. /N A AR FEEH
Xiangyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd."") PRC/ RMB97,900,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
FEGIEKRERAF Mainland China 97,900,000 A ¥ and sale of
| B K B animal feed
JE § Y 5 R
Yichang Chia Tai Co., Ltd."" PRC/ US$18,090,000 - 100.0% Manufacture
HEEKRERAA® Mainland China 18,090,0003 7t and sale of
LA PN animal feed
7E S 8 & BB
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/ US$117,460,000 - 100.0%  Manufacture and
(Qinhuangdao) Mainland China 117,460,0003 5T sale of value—
Co., Ltd. ET il PN added processed
([ Chia Tai Food food
Qinhuangdao]) ¢ JEE S 19 8 I I
EREMMERER)
A RRA W] (TE K& M
RER]) .0
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/ US$85,700,000 - 100.0%  Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd™: 1) Mainland China 85,700,0003 70 sale of value-
EXREMEEGEE) R K added processed
EE A R food
JEE 3% 19 4 I 24X
Modern State Investments British Virgin US$106,984,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment
Limited Island/Hong Kong 106,984,0003 7t holding and
e B 4 R provision of
BEEHW technical
services
BB e
BB Al e 75
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 RKEBARNER (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt : (4)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)
Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R
RE S, BRMA JRE A R A 1B BE T 43 e

2 W 44 1 o 1 C it M 3 A< v Y. /N A AR FEEH
C.P. Vietnam Corporation Vietnam/ VND - 70.8% Integrated
(“CPVC”) Vietnam 1,741,792,500,000 agri-food
Mg, MR 1,741,792,500,000 business
i R JE AR
5B
Pucheng Chia Tai PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 69.5%  Manufacture and
Biochemistry Co., Ltd.( Mainland China 100,000,000 A\ ¥ sale of chlorte -
TR IE KR AL A B A w6 =P N tracycline
Zhumadian Huazhong PRC/ RMB72,000,000 - 70.0%  Manufacture and
Chia Tai Co., Ltd.(® Mainland China 72,000,000 A\ & ¥ sale of chlorte -
BEREIE R IE R R AR g ok tracycline
Ek Chor China Motorcycle Bermuda/ US$1,195,200 100.0% 100.0% Investment
Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 1,195,2003 56 holding
HRE ERd-g2Y)d
Ek Chor Investment Hong Kong/ HK$28,300,000 - 100.0% Investment
Company Limited Hong Kong 28,300,000% 7t holding and
GRBERRAF w7 T property
investment
'€y Y3
WERE
Hannick Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100.0% Property
Hong Kong 20 investment
T HE WERE
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s
earnings. The remaining 15% is attributable to the

PRC joint venture partner.
The Group is only entitled to 87.15% of the
subsidiary’s earnings. The remaining 12.85% is

attributable to the PRC joint venture partner.

Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC

law.

Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC

law.

Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under PRC law.

Acquired in 2013.

Established in 2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion

of the Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REELENER
Group
A%H
2013 2012
—E = - Sy
Notes US$’°000 US$’000
M LT FL T
Investments in joint ventures, REECENRE
included in non-current assets: BERIERBEEN :
Share of net assets AL G R (a) 124,435 107,303
Due from joint ventures, included in JE WA A K OE
prepayments, deposits and other BE R FA IR -
receivables 24 T At JFE W R 2k 25 4,926 6,749
Due to joint ventures, included in WA 8 A 2K E >
other payables and accruals 2 7 il JRE A MR
Y&k 3 28 (2,378) (1,258)
Interests in joint ventures 68 A R RE R 126,983 112,794
Notes: Mtk -
(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures none (a) A 4 A SR A A SRR RS 5 M IRAE
of which is regarded as individually material. The following ST — R A TR o F R MERE DL RE
tables summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of VAR Z BN EIRE RN AEESEZ Y
all individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted BER G .
for using the equity method:
Other Total
Carrying Profit comprehensive comprehensive
amount for the year income income
JUSTTR N AR H M mias 2o A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E s B Er E
2013
Group effective interest A 4R B A7 2RE 2R 124,435 20,969 4,389 25,358
2012
Group effective interest 2 45 G BOHE 25 107,303 14,476 - 14,476
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REeEELXENER (E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) it - (%)
(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances (b) AEBMBEHAELCEZIBREENE S
with joint ventures are disclosed in note 24(c) and 27 to the HRFRBR A > T 43 i) B 2 % T 75 ik 2 M Rk
financial statements, respectively. 24(c) 27
(c) Particulars of the principal joint ventures, which are indirectly (c) HAAFRMEREZ ETEAECEFHEM

held by the Company, are as follows:

T

Percentage of

FABS

Place of Nominal value Ownership

incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/  attributable to Profit Principal
Company name and operations registered capital the Group sharing activities

%2 E

G A BRBEA A 4 R A
ACIEZY i 8 B T RE W A% T A Jt 45 HE 3 JRE A i F] FEEW
Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill PRC/ US$5,000,000 50% 50% Manufacture
Limited Mainland China 5,000,0003 76 and sale of
A6 3¢ IE KA B R 23 H] LU P PN animal feed
JE § Y 5 R
Handan Chia Tai Feed PRC/ RMB11,200,000 50% 50% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 11,200,000 A\ F ¥ and sale of
15 I 1E KA B R 2 7 T A PN animal feed
7E S 8 & BB
Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$5,400,000 50% 50% Manufacture
AT I R T IE KA PR A ] Mainland China 5,400,0003 7t and sale of
o g Ok animal feed
7 8 25 & R
Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise PRC/ RMB70,000,000 50% 50% Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 70,000,000 A\ ¥ and sale of
HIRIEKREERRAH LD PN animal feed
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

20

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and operations

w1 B SE,
AR B E B

ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd.  British Virgin

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
[ ZFW
B A

C R I A% T A

US$12,000,000

&
op
3
>
M
F
i
BX
jﬁ;ﬂ(&

Percentage of

Islands/ 12,000,0003€ G
Hong Kong
B B A O
BEE W
Luoyang Northern PRC/ US$56,310,000
Ek Chor Motorcycle Mainland China 56,310,000 JC
Company Limited* il PN
W B AL T 5 ) AT
A B2 w]
* Since neither the Group nor its joint venture partner

is in a position to exercise unilateral control over the
economic activity of the entity, the Group’s interests

therein are classified as interests in joint ventures.

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the Group’s share of profits and losses of joint
ventures or formed a substantial portion in the Group’s
interests in joint ventures. To give details of all the
other joint ventures would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Ownership
interest

attributable to Profit Principal

the Group sharing activities
A 45 T A

Bir MR WA LR

50% 50% Investment

holding and

trading of

machinery and

spare parts

e gl

B s B

ES LSO

55% 55% Manufacture

and sale of

motorcycles

and spare parts
A B R T L
2

* HRALE KL G EEEAH AR
REEH —PRIEZL AT Z PG E >
AL B F A 2 AR B R R
AR A o

AT R E ARG AR Y
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2013 WE _F—=FF_H=+—HILFEE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 REEQATNER
Group
A
2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it FIL T For For
Investments in associates, RS AT RERE
included in non-current assets: BERIEREBEEN :
Share of net assets AL B G A (a) 49,654 44,110
Due from associates, included JRE WL W 42 A ] KO >
in prepayments, deposits and BT EAT IR -
other receivables 152 4 T At HE WOHR 3 25 1,411 -
Interests in associates T B 7 A ) B RE 2% 51,065 44,110
Notes: Mtk
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates none of (a) AR 7 R B 8 A v B R AR > M IRAE
which is regarded as individually material. The following (RS — KRB H K o T MR DARERS
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all Pl N T S N ) =2/ i)
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using BWapaaE
the equity method:
Group A4
Other Total
Carrying Profit comprehensive comprehensive
amount for the year income income
W THI AAERA  H w2 W A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FoL T FoL T Fx T ES
2013
Group effective interest A A B A ROHE 2% 49,654 13,331 1,821 15,152
2012
Group effective interest 2 45 G BOHE 25 44,110 10,157 - 10,157
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21

Notes: (continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21

The Group’s trade receivable balances due from the associates

are disclosed in note 24(c) to the financial statements.

Particulars of the associates, which are indirectly held by the

Company, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and operations

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/

registered capital

AL CEITRBRERAS
AEA BE SR N
Zhanjiang Deni Carburetor Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$21,250,000
TETL AR AL il 2% R 7 Mainland China 21,250,000 7¢
K
Conti Chia Tai International Limited* Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000
I K I P A R A ¢ Mainland China 3,122,000% JC
A/ v K
* Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint

control over the economic activity of the entity and

the Group has significant influence over the entity,

the Group’s interests therein are classified as interests

in associates.
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RBE QTR NERS (F)

Mt : (8

(b)  AHE S A E R B IR R T
PeH I T B A 2 MRk 24 (o) P 4k % -

(c) HI A W) [l H A 2 B8 A R RERE T

Percentage of

FHEML

Ownership
interest

attributable to Profit Principal

the Group sharing activities
7% 55 1 A

i i HE i A i EEEH

28% 28% Manufacture

and sale of

automotive parts

E S U A

50% 50% Investment

holding, and

manufacture

and sale of

animal feed

BGER R

EHBEWR

* P AR 45 [ R B % A ) 2 R 3
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22 TUHHEZRE
Group
A4 E
2013 2012
US$’°000 US$’000
B n FEoLFoo
Unlisted equity investments, at cost (note) JE_ LT Z BERE 3G > IRBA (M 5F) 1,125 615
Others H At 220 262
1,345 877
Note: Wit -

The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but at cost
because they do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for these
investments and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be

reasonably assessed.

i I T IR A B 2 5 R AT I 2 A RAESIE
T R 35 R i 455 N6 08 i 35 R DT Bk b S 4% T
AR R A A6 S R Ja A0 R B B DA R AR A
o B RE A 2 AL B2 T B

INVENTORIES 23 ®FE

Group

I W
2013 2012
R =4 —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FL T Fw T
Raw materials 5B 486,207 527,434
Work in progress T8 14,005 6,875
Finished goods B 103,467 79,659
603,679 613,968

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

—®-=f %

5

161



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2013 £ =% —~ =4+ H =+ — H L4 %
24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24 RBRUWEFERIRERE
Group
A £
2013 2012
US$’000 US$’000
L T 7T FT T
Trade receivables FE W B 5 iR R 121,956 99,151
Bills receivable JE W 5% 17,128 22,017
139,084 121,168
The Group normally grants to its customers a credit period of REH—BATE P 2SS EE BOH >
up to 60 days, depending on the requirements of the markets WRRA T REBERMNE - REFHEER
and the businesses. The Group seeks to maintain strict B BRBUBAR 2 B e o 51BN & o W kg &
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are Wz FER s K T RE B PR A 4R [ 2 % B A
reviewed regularly by management and interest may be charged RIBEZHRE L c EFER » NEHR
by the Group for overdue trade receivable balances at rates AHEEPEEERE - REBEKYESE
determined by the Group with reference to market rates. In the 2 M e > BEES AR BT (DL B ST H O A B )
opinion of the directors, there is no significant concentration T
of credit risk. An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
Group
A 4
2013 2012
TE DA e- St
Note US$’000 US$’000
M itk #L Tt FL T
Trade and bills receivables: JRE W B MR R S B
60 days or below 60HE LT 118,523 104,846
61 to 180 days 61%180H 16,734 13,505
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 1,300 993
Over 360 days %2 A360H 6,345 4,591
142,902 123,935
Impairment ik AE (a) (3,818) (2,767)
(b) 139,084 121,168
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24 BEREFEX
(continued)
Notes: Bt ik
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (a)

T

bills receivables during the year are as follows:

R (&)

A 1 M BT o MR R B R U A 88 A4 5

Group
A4
2013 2012
TR e St
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mtk E FoLF o
At 1 January »m—H—H 2,767 2,862
Impairment/(write back of impairment) H4F N Gt HEEHR Z
during the year recognised in WAE 7 GO 1o 935 ) 5 4
profit or loss, net 9 1,051 (95)
At 31 December BrHZA=+—0 3,818 2,767
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and b O W B W sk Bk S R U A L G
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade HE I 223478 500 (8 — 4F : 1503
and bills receivables of US$2,347,000 (2012: US$1,503,000) HIET0) Z A N E W B 5 R Ak AR AR TR
with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount. (G 1B A o w0 B W B 5 TR ik e o 98 DA
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to HEMBHEZ2XPEER -
customers who were in financial difficulties.
The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are (b) AR AR A A H WA < B B Mk e B
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired BHEBSHIT :
is as follows:
Group
A 4R
2013 2012
TR e St
US$’000 US$’000
EV/n an FoLF o
Neither past due nor impaired AR B I 5 AR I AE 114,499 105,626
180 days or below past due A 180H 21,007 11,920
Over 180 days past due W %2 180H 1,675 2,808
137,181 120,354
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

24

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2013 are aggregate amounts of US$1,908,000
(2012: US$732,000), US$381,000 (2012: US$2,000) and
US$79,165,000 (2012: US$60,553,000) due from joint
ventures, associates and related companies, respectively,
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by

the Group to its major customers.

At 31 December 2013, trade receivables with an aggregate
amount of US$3,738,000 (2012: US$8,200,000) were pledged

to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 29(a)).

25 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

B AR

A H

24 BREZRIAKREE (&)

Mt (%)

(b)

(d)

()

R B YT AR A 2 M WA sk SR B B 3 X
Rk H P AR

R 0L S SRR AET 2 R AR R LA S L LA
OBk WL F P B o AR IR RSB > A
N T R R EO R B TR
T % S50 U0 R 150 T A i el o R e A
JRUEE % S5 B AR DR SRR A

REEP _R—=Z4FT A= —HZHE
W B 5 Bk A G AR B T AR H R R
SRR A 19088 KL (ZF— 2
AE 7328 E0) 538 W E L (ZF—
AR 1028 KTT) K7,916.58 KT (T —
41 6,055.383570) 0 R B A B A
Wt A W) B B LA T Z 5K JE o SR T
SEHRAT > 7 4 JY) 45 i AR SR T i s 2 ) 3R
B ORGS0 P9 B (AR AR 1
R PR R R A RS -

W=+ _H=+—H  EKHEH
MR A 51373.88 3500 (& —4F £ 820.0
B SET0) O Jy A4 [ 35 T SR AT A 3k Z K
5 (BFEE29(a)) ©

25 FENKRM - RERHEMEWRERK

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
AR Y. /|
2013 2012 2013 2012
S} TR B B TUR
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FFx  Frfr FrLFiru - FILF
Prepayments A MR 29,290 42,107 222 176
Deposits e 10,764 4,107 14 16
Other receivables At JE W B 2K 45,216 35,124 116 127
85,270 81,338 352 319
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 was an aggregate amount
of US$4,926,000 (2012: US$6,749,000), US$1,411,000 (2012:
nil) and US$580,000 (2012: US$11,777,000) due from joint
ventures, associates and related companies, respectively. The
balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment, except for an aggregate amount of US$4,500,000
(2012: US$5,110,000) advanced to certain joint ventures
which bear interests at 4.45% (2012: 4.45% to 5.60%) per
annum and are repayable within one year.

Included in the Company’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 was an aggregate amount
of US$12,000 (2012: US$23,000) due from related companies.
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

25

26

i(‘E%E{;fﬂEﬁ R E R H b B WRR

AEER _F—=Z4FT-HA=Z1T—HZXH
IR - $%4 R I YR » B& &5
492,68 F L (ZF— 4 : 67498 £ L) »
14118300 (ZF— 24 « ) K58.08 %0
(ZF— T4 17778 35 08) 40 ) 8 JE ik
G BEAF KB AR ZHKIE o %
LMREIR T —EAF450.08E T (ZFE 2
FS51II0EEL) BRTETAERLENF
124.45% (ZF — Z4F : 4.45%%5.60% ) Z K
R RO — N R A » AR RS
Ty SEHRHH ~ Ho 8 I I ) R Y o

AAFRRZFE-=ZF+ A=+ HZHEMN
MRk ~ e KL RERGR P > B8 G128
FKIC (T — AR 1 23838 00) HEW B A F
ARIH o % 55K T AR > S S S S A R

RERBITEN
Group Company
A4 Y NN
2013 2012 2013 2012

SRS DR TUE SR SR DR
US$’000 US$000  US$°000 US$°000
X Frx FKrTxn FKxTFr HKrLTx

Cash and bank balances B4 KR AT ST
other than deposits (A EMER) 228,862 160,981 1,622 7,717
Deposits at banks E W17 3K 271,566 23,200 81,279 -
Total cash and bank balances Bl & M SRATAF R 4B A 500,428 184,181 82,901 7,717
Less: Pledged deposits W DR (30,357) (1,027) - -
Less: Time deposits with WoBHHEE=EMAZ
maturity over 3 B AE K
months (95,931) - (10,613) -
Cash and cash equivalents BREeRBEE&EEY 374,140 183,154 72,288 7,717
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE
26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

27

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2013, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese
Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$368,042,000 (2012:
US$154,250,000) and US$9,070,000 (2012: US$12,697,000),
respectively. The RMB and VND are not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations and the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB and VND into
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and twelve months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as

follows:

B AR

n

26

27

o]

BERBITEX(E)

MRo-B—Z4E+FZH=Z+—H > REEZ
DION B W ol vl B A P B 4 I SRAT A 77
4 F53156,804. 28 K6 (2R — 4F 1 1
%5,425.083£50) &907.08E L (ZF——
AR 1 1,269.783EI0) o AR KB E WA
18 30 0 il B W o MR B o O
A REE A )RR 8 B A5 RE ~ B ME S A R A BRI
TE T AT AN AR B > AR [ B
HE T REAEAT A Se I e 7 Z SRATIE N R
SRR B At L Al 1 W o

FEBUR SRAT 2 BL & 3248 1 8T 7 B) I 42K
PR B, o AR B A SR B R B 0 T
Ko Bl — B 2+ A BIRAZ M E
WA o M MRBUE A ) S ARk R 2
FE, o SRAT K547 B AR iR A7 THUITS 3T 391 08 46 %
A S S i B BLIF ZBRAT o

e & 5 BR X

SR T 35 R A B 5 M sk 2 MR R 43 T
(DA B HO9I 2 56 ) A F

Group

A
2013 2012
—E =g R
US$’°000 US$’000
B Ere n
60 days or below 60H LT 220,542 213,874
61 to 180 days 612 180H 6,870 8,450
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 1,780 1,237
Over 360 days ZR360H 955 151
230,147 223,712

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December
2013 is an aggregate amount of US$1,054,000 (2012:
US$1,643,000) and US$24,036,000 (2012: US$19,130,000)

due to joint ventures and related companies, arising from

transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of

the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by its

major suppliers.
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B 75 3R R M EF
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

28 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28 HMWEMSBRERRERER
Group Company
A A2 ]

2013 2012 2013 2012
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#xTFx Frfrxr FExFrxk  FExT
Receipts in advance TH W £ K 29,603 40,513 - -
Deferred income R JE WL 17,022 16,754 - -
Accruals HREN 168,702 115,456 8,207 990
Other payables o Ath JE A HR 3K 41,856 31,313 34 34
257,183 204,036 8,241 1,024

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2013 were an aggregate amounts of US$2,378,000
(2012: US$1,258,000) and US$15,837,000 (2012:
US$10,470,000) due to joint ventures and related companies

respectively.

The balances with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate
amount of US$2,362,000 (2012: US$1,187,000) due to certain
joint ventures which bear interests at the rate of 3% (2012:

3%) and are repayable on demand.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for an
aggregate amount of US$13,713,000 (2012: US$9,870,000)
due to a related company which is repayable within one

month.
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JRE £5F B ik B TH B2 2 B B 6E A 5H237.88 35 o0
(ZF— A4 £ 125.88 3% 0) K& 1,583.7# %t
(ZF— 4 2 1,047.083500) 40 Bl 2 AT &
A 2 M B A T Z KT o

HEBSEZIHRE BT AF23628 %0

TR -TE8THER) BAE TAREA
ETIERRI% (ZF— 4 3%) 5B K
PR E AN > KRR BU MIH - B K
WA B E R o

BPAME AT Z R BR—EAEF371.383F
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B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2013 WME _F—=4F+_H=+—H L4 ¥
29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 HRITRHEMER
Group Company
AL H A2 ]
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’°000 US$’000
Wit F T FEL oL FiFor FILFIT
Bank loans, secured A R ERAT A 3K (a) 12,823 12,264 - 3,000
Bank loans and other e HGH BRAT %
borrowings, unsecured oAl A 2k 963,893 528,310 404,252 —
Total bank and other SRAT B HAth £ %
borrowings ki) (b) 976,716 540,574 404,252 3,000
Analysed into amounts repayable: 18 %2 & % 50 A1 4 -
Within one year or on demand — A N B R R 534,003 499,568 10,106 3,000
In the second year P P 62,139 14,222 38,899 -
In the third to fifth year BE=EHAE 380,574 26,784 355,247 -
Total bank and other borrowings — #R47 & 3 fili i 2k 42 %4 976,716 540,574 404,252 3,000
Portion classified as current SR AR A A
liabilities oy (c) (534,003)  (499,568) (10,106) (3,000)
Non-current portion IE 7 B B A 442,713 41,006 394,146 -
Notes: M at -
(a) At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s property, (a) MNRE—=4FT+H=1—H0 > &A% H

plant and equipment, land lease prepayments and trade

receivables with carrying amounts of US$5,825,000
(2012: US$32,807,000) (note 15(c)), US$559,000
(2012: US$533,000) (note 17(b)), US$3,738,000 (2012:
US$8,200,000) (note 24(d)), respectively, were pledged as

security for bank borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the bank loans of the Company were

secured by the Group’s office premises in Hong Kong with a
net carrying amount of US$27,338,000.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 S|ITRHMERK(E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mfat : (59)
(b) The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings of the (b) A A [ Je A A ) 2 BRAT B FE At il 5 R i
Group and the Company are denominated in the following YT WAL
currencies:
Group Company
AR A2 H]
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR = R TR R A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$000
FILFi FILFIL FILFir Eearn
US$ E=yIn 493,790 77,894 404,252 3,000
VND oL g 454,327 452,156 - -
RMB A R¥ 28,599 10,524 - -
976,716 540,574 404,252 3,000

As at 31 December 2013, none of the covenants
relating to bank borrowings had been breached (2012:
nil).
(c) As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current portion
of long-term bank and other borrowings amounting to
US$30,611,000 (2012: US$13,492,000).
(d) Included in the Group’s bank and other borrowings
as at 31 December 2013 is an aggregate amount of
US$25,444,000 (2012: US$8,020,000) borrowed from

related companies.
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B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E - —=Z4+ =1 —HILEE
30 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 30 HMERBAEME
Group Company
ALK VA
2013 2012 2013 2012
SRS SR SR 2%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
#xTx Frrfrxr FExFrxk  FExT
Provision for severance allowance & ¥ B 78 4,477 4,311 543 531
Non-current portion of I Tk Bl S Y 2 A M A
deferred income 9,209 1,773 - -
13,686 12,084 543 531
31 DEFERRED TAX 31 EZEFHIE
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the AREBMRARGZEMBERNEPERZ FEER
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HERE/ (A WT:
Group
AL H
2013 2012
US$’000 US$’000
E Y an E 7 on
Deferred tax assets P GEBLIH & - 1,995
Deferred tax liabilities 0 SE B H £ AR (15,526) (28,018)
(15,526) (26,023)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)
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7

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and

31 EEEHE (&)

AR > A B8 I 2 908 J0E B I S B R B

liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: B AT ¢
Group AL HE
Attributable to
FEfh
Depreciation Losses
in excess of available for
Revaluation related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
Revaluation of biological depreciation ~~ future taxable Withholding tax asets|
of properties assets allowance profits tax Others (liabiliies)
AR MWK
BUNE  ERRAEZ kg FRERR
hEER EhEhEE O KEDEM  THEER nEHH ke EE/(BR)
US§ 000 US§ 000 US§000 Us§000 Us§o00 US§ 000 Us§000
#ifr Er Ftr Fitr Fitr Fitr Fitr
At 1 January 2012 RZF-ZE-f-H (4814) (11,065) 1493 1733 (5,163) 39% (18,080)
Deferred tax credited) (charged) to ERRBERIEN/ ()
profitor loss during the year (note 12) ZERRT (WD) (143) (695) 158 694 (1,150) (4338) (7,094)
Deferred tax directly charged to equity ERRESRARIRZELHE
during the year (826) - - - - - (826)
Exchange realignment Eite - (14) 0 - - 104 ()
At 31 December 2011 REZB-CEFZHZ -0 (6,46 (1190) 1671 2400 (19) (3,85%) (1603)
At 1 Jonuary 2013 e St i (6,443) (11,905) 1,671 1417 (1913) (3,858) (26,023)
Deferred tax credited] (charged) to ER{REREN/ (F)
profit or loss during the year (note 1) RIER (M) (264) (1,082) 162 6,801 5219 (30) 10,806
Exchange realignment EiAg (262) 18 (26) 6 (%) (177) 309)
At31 December 2013 RoE-ZEF ST (6971) (12,804 1807 9,34 (1727) (4065) (15,526)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

31

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will
expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits.

At 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$38,967,000
(2012: US$30,461,000) as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. Out of this amount, unrecognised tax losses
of US$38,967,000 (2012: US$30,461,000) arose in mainland
China which will expire within five years from the end of the

reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established
in mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$436,944,000 (2012:
US$267,655,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$43,888,000
(2012: US$26,875,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2013 BRE - E—=4F+_H=+—HIL4FE
32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 B’AX
Shares % 4
Company
A ]
2013 2012
R =4 xR T4
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t FFi e n
Authorised W
Ordinary shares: B
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000%
(2012: 36,000,000,000 shares) (Z—4F
of US$0.01 each 36,000,000,000/8 )
B 1 50.0136 8 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: B R SR -
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares AZ %) —20,000,000,0008
(2012: 20,000,000,000 shares) (ZF 24
of US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000/% )
B i H0.0136 8 (a) 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B# %1 —4,000,000,000/%
(2012: 4,000,000,000 shares) (ZF— 4
of US$0.01 each 4,000,000,000/% )
9 B {60.0155 76 (a) 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid CEBITRHR
Ordinary shares: BB
21,792,741,076 shares 21,792,741,076)1
(2012: 18,123,752,377 shares) TR TR
of US$0.01 each 18,123,752,377h%)
9 B {60.0155 76 217,927 181,238
Convertible preference shares: B #R R BFSEE -
Series A — nil ARY)—
(2012: 3,300,540,621 shares) (ZF— 4
of US$0.01 each 3,300,540,621 /%)
1 B i 50.0136 8 - 33,005
Series B — 3,261,077,748 shares B& % —3,261,077,748)1%
(2012: 3,261,077,748 shares) TR T
of US$0.01 each 3,261,077,7488%)
1 B i 160.0136 8 32,611 32,611
32,611 65,616
250,538 246,854
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

b % H

B AR

Year ended 31 December 2013 BRE_-F— =4+ _H=+—HIL4F )%
32 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

ordinary shares and convertible preference shares during the

A H

32 BAX(&E)
& 12 (&)

RBEBEF-=ZH#R-F-"F+2A1
St HIRAE R > AR B8 AT R &

years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows: W BT
Number of shares in issue
BHRAYR
Series A Series B Issued
convertible  convertible Issued  convertible Share
Ordinary preference preference ordinary preference premium
shares shares shares share share account Total
ARSI BZJl C#fr
W Mk W15 CE Y T
Lk BER BEk  EEREA  BERRA (L A
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US§'000
it Frifr  FEifr  Fifr  FEifr
At 1 January 2012 RZF—"FE—H—H 16,987,835,710  1,135,916,667  3,261,077,748 169,878 49711 1,284,916 1,498,765
Issue of shares upon EEADREH T
settlement of the BIRA
Intercompany Debt (b) - 3300,540,621 - - 33,005 216,653 249,658
Conversion of convertible WA el B B
preference shares (a)  1,135916,607 (1,135,916,667) - 11,360 (11,360) - -
At 31 December 2012 e S
and | January 2013 FIZRE-HE
ZE-ZE-A-H 18,123,752,371  3,300,540,621  3,261,077,748 181,238 05,016 1,501,569 1,148,423
Issue of shares upon TR £ 6 T 28 17 e
exercise of share options (c) 368,446,078 - - 3,084 - 17,584 21,268
Conversion of convertible ~ BEHL AT Mt 06 Bt
preference shares (a)  3,300,540,621 (3,300,540,621) - 33,005 (33,003) - -
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—2
+ZAZ+—H 11,192,741,076 - 3,261,077,748 119 32,611 1,519,153 1,769,691
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

32 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to aggregate of the issue price of all
the convertible preference shares held by them
respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the
shares held by them respectively; and

(iii) the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to

and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the

holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled
to participate in such assets, by reference to the
aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by them

respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 3,300,540,621
(2012: 1,135,916,667) Series A convertible preference shares
were converted into 3,300,540,621 (2012: 1,135,916,667)

ordinary shares of the Company.

32
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(1)

(ii)

(iii)

I R B e I 2 FE AN (B2
] A A 55 ) 2 IR % AR 2
T 485 g R S P T L 48 9 S A A A
WA A A Z B T B S B
BT S s

S S A I 45 IR A48 Aor  o
i) A 2 i) JBe A A A 450 I (T
e 15 5 I I JHE Ml 22 LAY DR % 5
BEZ AT B4y B Ah) 2 F5 N (2
WA 5 2% B Rp AT 2 B THT B AR D)
TR R

B 2% 5 R A N 4R R S M o
e e Jo Y B 3 IR T AT 0 S8 B A
(0 355 T 490 5 5 J AL A 4 45 e A
2 BLoM IR 5 R AT ) Z
FA N (2 RS HREZ R
T AR T RLAHR

A0 ) SR N A B R 2 e A
Hy 1B Ji o

MEE_Z-Z=Z4+ZA=Z+—H1
AEJE N > 3,300,540,621 (% — 4 ¢
1,135,916,667) Z A% %) ] #e Jik 5 5 Kk
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

32

33

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) On 2 March 2012, Oriental Success International Limited
(“OSIL”, the immediate holding company of the Company
as at 31 December 2011, which became a related company
with common shareholders on 18 January 2012) and its
affiliates had fully settled the remaining balances of its long-
term amounts due to the Group (the “Intercompany Debt”),
and the Company issued 3,300,540,621 Series A convertible
preference shares with par value of US$0.01 per share to OSIL

accordingly.

(c) On 18 February 2013, 368,448,078 ordinary shares were
issued pursuant to the exercise of share options granted by the

Company.
Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 33 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors approved the Company to terminate the
2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, which will remain in force for a period of ten
years from that date. Upon termination, no further options will
be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However,
the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme will remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any option granted prior to its termination,
or otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. All options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the

Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
33 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.
The following share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2013 and 2012:
2013 2012
SR = R Exercise
Number of options Number of options price
Jiz e 8 H RHRESH CER A
HK$
o
- 215,848,078 0.390
129,248,078 194,848,078 0.390
149,848,078 236,848,078 0.354
279,096,156 647,544,234
(a) There was no grant or exercise of share options during (a)

the year ended 31 December 2012.

On 18 February 2013, 368,448,078 ordinary shares were
issued pursuant to the exercise of share options with a
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.38 per share.

There was no grant of share options during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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26 February 2003 to 25 February 2013
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3 May 2004 to 2 May 2014
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19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015
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REEZZ-ZH+ZA=Z+t—HL
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

33 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2013, the Company had 279,096,156
(2012: 647,544,234) share options outstanding, which
represented approximately 1.3% (2012: 3.6%) of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of such options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
279,096,156 (2012: 647,544,234) additional ordinary
shares and additional share capital of approximately
US$2,791,000 (2012: US$6,475,000) and share
premium of approximately US$10,558,000 (2012:
US$24,809,000) (before any issue expenses and without
taking into account of any transfer of share option

reserve to the share premium account).

34 RESERVES

(a)

Group

(i) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(ii)  The share option reserve of the Group and
the Company comprises the fair value of share
options granted by the Company which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment in
note 2.4(t) to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related option expire or be forfeited.
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2 A279,096,1564% (& — 4
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A ) R % B BB AT R AR A
13% (ZF— 4 :3.6%) - i
S T R 5 A T AT BE 5 ARAR AR A
TR 2 A A5 4 > W B AT Z I
HH A N279,096,156 (T — 4
647,544,234 ) B35 78 B T 40 3 n e 2
27191 EEIL (TR — 244 1 64758 3%
TT) F0 A R A 402,480,988 35 5T (%
— A 1 2,480.98 3 00) CREEHERA
B 17 B 32 B AR B A AR I e WEE 5 £ o
) B e IR 2 &) o

FEE
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R Z W R BB R A AR
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34 RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(iii)

N 4 BB R 2 7
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
34 fREi& (&)
Group (continued) (a) AKEBE(E)

The deferred payable shares of the Group and (iii) A4 [ RAS A 7] 2 98 1 HE A

the Company represent the ordinary shares and/ AN BRE_F-FE+Z

or convertible preference shares of the Company H =+ —H 1k 4 B e & %

to be issued as part of the consideration for the [ A P g A = TTR 2 ]
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended VNN | e AT Y

31 December 2010. The movements in the Se B o W AT ME AT B AS A AR 2
deferred payable shares during the years ended FZER R -THE+TH

31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: ZEtT—HIEFEERNEFHNF -

Number of
deferred

payable shares US$’000

9 S M A M A FE T

At 1 January 2012 R_F—-"#F—H—H 3,300,540,621 249,658

Issue of shares upon settlement 8 9 8 i) P 75 B AT AR
of the Intercompany Debt (& % R EE32(b))

(as defined in note 32(b)) (3,300,540,621) (249,658)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

S e AL EA P S
L

At 31 December 2012,

1 January 2013 and
31 December 2013

St ey G

The Group’s merger reserve represents the
excess of the total of the consideration
transferred for the acquisition of subsidiaries
through business combinations under common

control and the amount recognised for non-

ACER [ Z £ OF okt 775 98 388 36 )
PR B SE B A OF T AR WO
PoF J 2 ] i e 2 AR % R
Hy JE PSR 2 W BB
A I AR R RIS

controlling interests over the carrying amount 18 S WO JH I A 3 s BRI L =2 25
of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and i o

pre-acquisition reserves combined by the Group.

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with (v) 2 A6 BE A5 T ¥ BROR B 3k
in accordance with the accounting policies 2.4(f) Bk 2 T A TR
adopted for office premises held for own use set LR & ) )

out in note 2.4(f).

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in (vi) YRR AR AREE b

accordance with the PRC Companies Law or
the Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment as applicable
to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates. None of the Group’s PRC
reserve funds as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

were distributable in the form of cash dividends.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #E _F =4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

34 RESERVES (continued) 34 fREE(E)
(a) Group (continued) (a) AKBE (&)
(vii) The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all (vii) APREW M S A FHies
foreign exchange differences arising from the A b B 2 T > B A 3 T T
translation of the financial statements of foreign O w) 2 B R B A A M Ah
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The WEPT R 2 B o B AR B R R
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the FE2.4(x) PR A6 S BOR R B o

(b)

accounting policies set out in note 2.4(x).

Company (b) ARAF
Share
premium  Share option Deferred Retained
account reserve  payable shares profits Total
B WRERG BTENRA  KAEMNE ki
Note US $'000 US $'000 US $'000 US $'000 US $'000

Wit #ifx  Frfr  Fxfxr  FxTr  Fxlx
At 1 January 2011 [ St Sl 1,284,916 8,410 149,658 8177 1,551,011

Profit for the year and total AAER R R4 7

comprehensive income 2T A

for the year - - - 297,706 297,706
Issue of shares upon settlement of % A 7 i G H 1

the Intercompany Debt BITRA 32(b) 216,653 - (249,658) - (33,005)
2012 interim dividend “E-CEPHRE 13 - - - (56,966) (56,966)
2012 final dividend proposed jor e Sty 31117 13 - - - (51,392) (51,392)

At 31 December 2012 and WoZ—-Z4EF A=t
—A—H

1 January 2013 ) St 1,501,569 8,470 - 197,525 1,707,564
Profit for the year and total R A

comprehensive income SR

for the year - - - 76,077 16,077
Issue of shares upon exercise TR R T

of share options BiRA 32(c) 17,584 (3,111) - - 14473
2013 interim dividend “ER-ZENHRE 13 - - - (32,328) (32,328)
2013 final dividend proposed BHE_E-ZEKNRE 13 - - - (61,422) (61,422)
At 31 December 2013 O Sty v g 1,519,153 5,359 - 19,852 1,104,364
The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the BE_ZE =1+ H=+—HILFEE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 included a loss AR\ ] RN AR A ] B R A
of US$3,313,000 (2012: US$5,734,000) which has been dealt HEABASABEZIIEE L (ZE—
with in the financial statements of the Company. AE 1 573.483E00) o
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #E R —=ZF - H =+ —H ILFJE
35 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions
Apart from the transactions detailed in note 32 to the
financial statements, the Group had no major non-cash
transactions of investing and financing activities during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36

(a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent
liabilities in respect of the Group’s guarantees not

provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

(i) Guarantees were given by the Group in respect
of certain indebtedness of joint ventures. The
amount of facilities granted was US$68,084,000
(2012: US$67,423,000) and were utilised to the
extent of US$17,534,000 as at 31 December
2013 (2012: US$19,694,000).

(ii)  Guarantees were given by the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain
indebtedness of independent third party
customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided exceeds the net
asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our
maximum contingent liabilities are limited to
the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of

such guarantees as at 31 December 2013 were

US$18,277,000 (2012: nil).
(b) As at 31 December 2012, a guarantee of US$25,500,000

was given by the Company to a PRC authority in respect

of capital contribution to a subsidiary.
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T

(i) AEALBEGBELEZTHEE
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6,808.4# KL (ZF— 4 :
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b E B E R 2

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

7

37

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk MY R
Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
REHERH
fERBEHBEA

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties and certain plant
and equipment under operating leases arrangements, with the
leases negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 10

years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants falling due as follows:

ACHR AR R AR A R P A R R K
TR sl > Bl Z R AL 2% 1 2 104F

A o

MoF =R A= AWHEZ
RBRET > A B R A B #0 W
LU

Group

PN
2013 2012
R =4 R
US$’000 US$’000
FwFi Fo T T
Within one year —4E N 1,182 1,428
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B_ERHE (B ERMWA) 1,861 1,835
After five years FAEDIR - 226
3,043 3,489

At 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any non-

cancellable operating lease arrangement as lessor (2012: nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 # £ R =4+ H =+ —HILEK
37 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37 ReEWVELH(E)
(continued)
As lessee ERAEE
The Group leases certain of its equipment and land under AREEMMBEREHELPEMAE T RMHE L
operating leases arrangements, with the leases negotiated with My BT E Z IR AL A 1 RS0 A o

original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum N _FE =+ _H=+—H A=z
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling BWERMET > AHEE AN A HHE X
due as follows: W
Group
A4
2013 2012
R =8 e Sy
US$’000 US$’000
FiwFx F T
Within one year —4E N 27,732 22,473
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B OEPHE (BFEERWE) 94,304 76,090
After five years HAEDAR 161,772 125,457
283,808 224,020
At 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any N —=F+H=1+—H » KAFEL
significant non-cancellable operating lease arrangement as HRFH AW AT B KA TR 2 RS HE R
lessee (2012: nil). (-4 E) .
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38 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Group had the following capital commitments as

at the end of the reporting period:

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

38

(a)

BEXREE

ACER B B R 2 EAORMEWE ¢

Group

A4
2013 2012
—® =4 —® A
US$’000 US$’000
By n FILF T

Contracted, but not provided for: A A » {H 3 A AE H 8 i
Land + M 1,295 -
Buildings M5t 65,793 18,535
Plant and machinery (note (i)) W= T s (PR RE (1)) 87,380 15,580
Consideration for acquisition R B — % I R A R A AR

of a subsidiary (note (ii)) (B3 (i) - 15,702
154,468 49,817

Notes:

(i)

(it)

Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant
and machinery as at 31 December 2013 is an amount
of US$10,674,000 (2012: US$1,021,000) contracted

but not provided for to related companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Chia Tai Food Investment Co., Ltd, a
related company of the Group, for the purchase of the
entire equity interest in Chia Tai Food Qinhuangdao
at a consideration of US$15,702,000. The acquisition
was completed in January 2013.

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint

ventures is as follows:

Contracted, but not provided for

O34 > AH I AR A HY S84

(ii)

HHPAFER_F—-=£T2H
Z=+—H > REHEFEAFKT
FEH » ARG AR A H 58 5 0 R R
M as 2 B A TR A 1,067.4 8
T (ZF— T4 102.183F00) »

NRE-Z—-HFTH=Z1—
H k4R » A 7] — I A+
HIEREHBERMRA R (KREH
P — % B LA T ) B AT — I WO
o MLKEERENRESN S
TOERE > AR 21,570 283458 - %
WA R B — =4 — H 58

A5 B A 8 A S EARYE N

Group

A £
2013 2012
R DA —E T
US$°000 US$’000
B in FKILT T
906 934

At 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any

significant capital commitment (2012: nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

(c)

RER-ZFFZHAZT—H AR

I B kAR I (%
45'3 : iﬂ]‘;) o

- & — =

— =

F F B



186

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b#% B B & R 2 A

BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2013 #E & — =4+ 2 =+ — H IR
39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 39
(a) In addition to the acquisition of the entire equity (a)

interest in Chia Tai Food Qinhuangdao from a related

company as disclosed in note 38(a)(ii) to the financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties during the year:

Sales of goods to:
Joint ventures
Associates
OSIL/High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) and
its related entities *

Purchases of goods from:
Joint ventures
C.P. Trading Co., Ltd. and
its related entities”

Rental income received and
receivable from OSIL/HOEL
and its related entities®

Rental expenses paid and
payable to OSIL/HOEL
and its related entities”

Technical service fee to CPG*

Project management fee to
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.*

Interest income on overdue trade
receivables from OSIL/HOEL

and its related entities

Interest income on amounts due from:

Joint ventures
OSIL/HOEL and its
related entities

Interest expenses on amounts due
to:
Joint ventures
CPF Investment Limited
OSIL/HOEL and its related

entities

Note
Wt

BEEMT
HEAE (i)
%/ (i)

OSIL, High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”)
Be LI A 3 (i)

PRI A
N -fE S (ii)
C.P. Trading Co., Ltd.

B $C B o A 3 (i)

#OSIL, HOELK }
B ERER K TR
N (iii)

A RO HE BT
OSIL, HOEL X%
L A 2 (iv)

Bl ik % # 7 CPG” (v)

HHEMETEKRE
A RRA = (vi)

J§ HOSILHOEL K& H
A ki 3 > 9% 301 E Wi
B 52 A BB A (vii)

W Z AR
HEME
OSIL, HOEL &

L A 5

JE AT 2 )8,
S
(SR -g1E 3 (ix)
CPF Investment Limited (ix)
OSIL, HOEL K& 3
B LA 3 (x)

BEATKE

B T A B 785 i WY RE38(a) (i) I R 2
] — KB A T B IE R R MR EE
Vil 2 VS JBEAE A 5 A 4R R A P i LT
HMALHEUTHRZY

Group

A4
2013 2012
—E = TR T
US$’000 US$’000
L F LT
22,278 24,157
1,194 1,700
529,750 472,187
15,875 16,227
240,623 307,679
3,101 3,873
2,263 3,036
26,008 22,592
6,506 -
4,714 4,121
679 830
13 1
24 61
1,855 -
284 368
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(it)

(iii)

The sales of goods were made by reference to the
prevailing market prices of, the cost of marketing (if
any) of and demand for the goods in mainland China
and Vietnam, and the selling prices shall be no more
favorable than those made available to the Group’s
customers which are independent third parties. The
sales of goods to OSIL/HOEL and its related entities
excluded the sales of goods of US$1,402,000 (2012:
US$253,000) from a subsidiary of the Group to
CPVC, a connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group.

The purchases of goods were determined on the
basis of arm’s length negotiations and the purchase
prices shall not be higher than the prevailing market
prices in mainland China and Vietnam, and shall be
no less favourable than those made available to the
Group from suppliers which are independent third
parties. The purchases of goods from OSIL/HOEL and
its related entities excluded the purchases of goods
of US$1,413,000 (2012: US$187,000) by CPVC, a
connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,

from a subsidiary of the Group.

The rental income comprises of (i) US$2,941,000
(2012: US$3,600,000) related to a business carve-
out agreement entered between the Group and
OSIL on 31 December 2012 for the lease and/or use
of relevant non-feed related fixed assets located in
PRC by OSIL, which was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets and
applicable tax costs incurred by the Group, and (ii)
US$160,000 (2012: US$273,000) related to the lease
of certain properties of the Group in Hong Kong and
PRC to other related companies at rates determined

by the Group with reference to market rates.

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related

companies.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B B B N T K S R R
iz o 8 B T~ I A R
AR (WA ) o R A E s IR AR
A B =R P e
Z B o &8 & T OSIL, HOEL
BEBEAEZ SR E
FCPVC (— FA 2 4 vy B 28 9 &
B A MR A ) ) A 140,285 300
(4R 2538 3550) AT -

TR BE T 1A 7 DR R Wk i
TE > B i B R R R R
K e 8 R A o NI SRR
S 45 BT 8 S 58 =y 436 ME G i
ZAEA o PRI E & A OSIL, "HOEL
KMEBEAEZ EFABIECPVC
(— FRAS 4R ] 1oy I e o 2 % A I
JE§ 23 W] ) R A A I — KM A
W EE 1413830 (2 — 4
18.7#FEI0) Wy 3 & o

R4 WA B9 (1) 48 A0 5529418
JC (R — 4R £ 360.08 K J0) Z
FRR -4+ -A=+—H
A 45 B BLOSIL % 3T 1 3 %5 4 1 1
i > HOSILAL 5 K/ B4 F A i
o B A R IR R RL R B 2 [ E
BE o JURAR AR 4 1 AT B
1116 2 T A A W B B A T
o RGDBEEB16.08 KT (2%
— AR 2738 FET) A MARE
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the

net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of
the incurred construction cost of production facilities

of the Group’s two food processing plants located at

PRC.

The interest income was charged on overdue trade
receivable balances due from related companies at
rates determined by the Group with reference to

market rates.

The interest income was charged on advances to joint
ventures and related companies at rates determined by

the Group with reference to market rates.

The interest expense was charged on advances from
joint ventures at rates mutually agreed with reference

to market rates.

The interest expense was charged on bank and other
borrowings from related companies at rate mutually

agreed with reference to market rates.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

This related party transaction also constitutes
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

n

39
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B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2013 E - —=FF_H=+—HILFE
39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 39 BEEALHE(E)
(continued)
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties (b) HEBEALTZBEXRBER
(i) Details of the Group’s balances with joint (i) ARAREEBEGESE BB
ventures, associates and related companies 2] T BREE 2 W) Z R A
included in trade and bills receivables, 5 W 5 Ik K SR iR - AT
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, R AR~ e 4 B At R MR K~
trade payables, other payables and accruals and FEAT B 2 MRk ~ At E A IR 3k
bank and other borrowings are disclosed in note Ko VH R B I 8RAT B F At A 3wk
24(c), 25, 27, 28 and 29(d) to the financial 4 5l B 88 7 B %5 3 36 B sk
statements, respectively. 24(c) ~ 25~ 27~ 28J%29(d) I o
(ii) Details of the guarantees in respect of certain (ii) BAEEAEE T EHBRME
indebtedness of joint ventures are included in P 22 FE I R A B 7 R M R
note 36(a)(i) to the financial statements. 36(a)(i) o
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) ZFEEXEETEAE (NBEE)ZH
who are also directors of the Group: BA :
2013 2012
US$’000 US$’000
By n FIL T oL
Short term employee benefits 391 08 B A A 4,626 4,034
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40 S£@MIEDE

40

CATEGORY

Other than the unlisted equity investments being classified as

available-for-sale investments as disclosed in note 22 to the

financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities of the
Group and the Company as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

were loans and receivables and financial liabilities stated at

amortised cost, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 B E R — =4+ H =+ — A L4
41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 HEEBREESTSREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group is exposed to market risk arising primarily from AREEEH 2 W5 R > EEABRERE
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates. The [ 3R 2 S ) o A A [ S e A S AT A A
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments AT HAFEEHE -
for trading purposes.
(a) Interest rate risk (a) EBE=XEK
The Group’s exposure to market risk arising from A 4 0 T SRS ) 2 5 R
changes in interest rates relates primarily to the RN A ] 2 S AT o AR
Group’s debt obligations. The Group monitors interest P DRG0 TEIRFH 8 0 B I
rate movements and determines appropriate hedging ) o AER [ RS ARG W 5 BB 4
activities when necessary. The Group’s exposure to B B4 S AE Yy 2 T 35 T bR 5 E A S
market risk arising from changes in interest rates in e
respect of cash and cash equivalents is considered
relatively minimal.
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of PLTF % AN 45 R R oK > SRAT R
the Group’s bank and other borrowings as at the end At A 7 A T S D R JRRL it B g M AR -
of the reporting period that are exposed to interest rate FHWMTF :
risk:
2013 2012
G St B St 3
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount  interest rate amount  interest rate
i 1 1L R GRS R T £ R G
US$’000 % US$’000 %
FiFx FErL T
Fixed rate denominated in: I 7 P 2 DL T 1 W Ay WA
RMB A R 4,916 5.91 473 6.20
Floating rate denominated in: VR IR B4 DL R B s BLA
Us$ e 493,790 4.06 77,894 3.90
VND B 454,327 6.73 452,156 9.99
RMB N 23,683 6.53 10,051 6.85
971,800 540,101
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 HEEBEERERS S REEE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued) (a)

The sensitivity analysis below indicates the estimated
annualised impact in the Group’s profit after tax and
equity that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure the bank
and other borrowings which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting

period.

An sensitity analysis on interest rate risk is as follows:

Increase/

Increase/

(decrease)

in basis

points

BB

(WA)

US$ FKoo 100
US$ ESyn (100)
RMB NN 100
RMB N (100)
VND o B I 100
VND 7t 5 (100)

BxmEbk (&)

2013

- S
Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax and
equity

b Bt 1%

i F K HE g
B, (W)
US$’000

F L F

(4,714)
4,714

(178)
178

(3,407)
3,407

A RBURR A3 A 4 AR 4R I 2 BR B AR
i A A B AR 2 Al EHAE AL B - B
MRBEHRGEFACKEE > WOH
TP T R A AR B R AT MR A S H
A5 A 45 1 B 2 06D R B 2 SR AT
Lo Fo At i 3K o

BRI Z ORI

2012

e <
Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax and
equity

B Bt 1%

i F) B HE g
¥, (WA)
US$’000
e n

(592)
592
(75)

75
(3,391)
3,391
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Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

41

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with major banks
and financial institutions. This cash management
policy limits the Group’s exposure to concentration of

credit risk.

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Trade
receivables of US$9,739,000 (2012: US$13,573,000)
were supported by guarantee issued by bank provided
by customers. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 36(a), the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the
end of the reporting period is disclosed in note 36(a).
The Group held assets of US$23,364,000 as at 31
December 2013 (2012: nil) as pledge for the guarantees

granted to independent third party customers.

n

41
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Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥
41 BERBEERL&RBCK (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Agricultural activities

The Group is exposed to risks arising from
environmental regulations, climatic changes and

outbreak of diseases.

The Group’s geographic spread of farms allows a
fair degree of mitigation against adverse climatic
conditions. The Group has appropriate environmental
policies and procedures in place to comply with
environmental and other laws. The Group monitors
the health of its livestock on a regular basis and has
procedures in place to minimise and manage risk

exposure to diseases.
Foreign currency risk

RMB and VND are not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions are
conducted at the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China and banks in Vietnam, respectively.
Payments for imported materials and remittances of
earnings out of mainland China and Vietnam are

subject to the availability of foreign currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, funds
denominated in RMB and VND may have to be, and
from time to time are, converted into US$ or other
foreign currencies for purchases of imported materials

and equipment.

Should RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate against
USS$, it may increase/reduce the foreign currency
equivalent of such earnings available for distribution by
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the
Company.

(c)

(d)
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N4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2013 & E R —=F T _H=1—HILFE
41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 BHERBEES S REEK (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) HSEREEE(E)
The Group’s businesses are principally operated in A 45 H] 2 26 8 R e [ O [ R
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all BN > KA 5 DN R Je bk
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND. A B BAL o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at T 2 B 7 A 3 53 B A R R 5 A DL
the end of the reporting period to a possible change in T o A SR Z B B i R 2 WE 25 (R
RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other variables A S B 1 1) b G s WD 2 B N R K
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and ABZ A REEE) REE B RE A
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary R R ER T R 2 E
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). BEFEE o A BIE A
The analysis excludes differences that would result from SE 5 B R AL ) 2 B i W
the translation of the financial statement of foreign WREEE MR o
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Appreciation/ Increase/
(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB or in profit (decrease)
VND before tax in equity
N B o v B B8 i i
Tl A 3 m HE 23 B~
(2 AH) (WA) (A )
US$’000 US$’000
Er n Er n
Year ended 31 December BE_Z =4
2013 +ZH=+—H
1E4E 8
If US$ weakens against RMB fil & ol N R B2 3% (712) (140)
If US$ strengthens against RMB  fi3& 08 A\ ¥ THAE (3%) 712 140
If US$ weakens against VND firg 5 70 W5 B e 0 2 AE 5% 4,984 3,738
If US$ strengthens against VND i 3& JC i8R o )& FH 6 (5%) (4,984) (3,738)
Year ended 31 December BKE_F 4
2012 +=HAH=+—H
kA B
If US$ weakens against RMB i & To I N\ R 2 3% 421 316
If US$ strengthens against RMB i oo N R FHE (3%) (421) (316)
If US$ weakens against VND ik 5 0 53 B e )G B2 AE 5% 3,395 2,546
If US$ strengthens against VND ¥ 5 50 8 W 5 )5 FHA (5%) (3,395) (2,546)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between

funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s

financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, were as follows:

Group

At 31 December 2013

41 HHERERET RBUER (&)

(e)

RBESRAR

ACSE 0 H B S 72 8 ) A TR R A
SRAT AR AR > A5 B < 0 A B
Z [ °F- 4 o

AHR B R BN R 2 B E & W

SR DL e B A0 5 L 90 3 4 i i SR AT 3
S DUBEAS SR Y 4 7 K o

TRBERHE AR ZBHE » AE
VB D A ) R 240 R B BRI
WME R

A 4 Wl

REF-=8#+2"A=1+—H

Within 1 year 1to5
or on demand years Total
IR
& A — 4 — &R A A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
T B B
Trade payables FEAT & 5 ik 230,147 - 230,147
Other payables and accruals -t B £ R 3k M T #2 & H 210,558 - 210,558
Bank and other borrowings  $R47 & J M 3% 586,405 501,260 1,087,665
Guarantee issued in respect hEBeEZIET
of certain indebtedness BB R Z R
of joint ventures (B E36(a) (1))
(note 36(a)(i)) 17,534 - 17,534
Guarantee issued in respect LML= RRZ
of certain indebtedness =B R ZHER
of independent third (Bt EE36(a)(ii))
party customers
(note 36(a)(ii)) 18,277 - 18,277
1,062,921 501,260 1,564,181
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R MY &

% B B AR

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE _F— =4+ _H=+—HILEE

n

o]

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 BHERBEES S REEK (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) HBELEK (&)
At 31 December 2012 W_F—-_HF+THA=1+—H
Within 1 year lto5
or on demand years Total
FER
g AR — 4R —FE A Rk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
By n By n B n
Trade payables JE A B2 5 MRk 223,712 - 223,712
Other payables and accruals 3t HE £+F B 55 S 7E 4% 2 146,769 - 146,769
Bank borrowings AT R K 521,206 43,878 565,084
Guarantee issued in respect A BAEZIET
of certain indebtedness B Rt 2 ¥5 1R
of joint ventures (K EE36(a)(1))
(note 36(a)(i)) 19,694 — 19,694
911,381 43878 955,259
Company A2 ]
At 31 December 2013 R_F—=Z4+"_H=+—H
Within 1 year 1to5
or on demand years Total
IR
A — 4 —FEHAE o
US$’000 US$’°000 US$’°000
FIL T #JC T 7L FIL T
Other payables and accruals -t JE A5 B 2k M T #2 & 8,241 - 8,241
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 27,832 447,416 475,248
36,073 447,416 483.489
At 31 December 2012 W_E—-_"4H#+_H=1+—H
Within 1 year 1to5
or on demand years Total
R
AR — 4R —FE A FAk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FL T By an F LT oL
Other payables and accruals -t B £ Bz 3k X T2 & H 1,024 - 1,024
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3,054 — 3,054
4,078 = 4,078
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EF

Year ended 31 December 2013 &RE _-F— =4+ _H=+—HILF)¥

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
() Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors its capital structure using a
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the net
debt to equity ratio, which is total bank and other
borrowings less cash and deposits divided by total
equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt
to equity ratio at reasonable level. Capital represents
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
net debt to equity ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

M EREE S & R EUR (8)
) EARER
ALEEEHE RN EEH W BEREEAR

A5 T R A A o S PR A B R A L
EYS ELEE L Y SN SRR PN
1t -

ZA A [ 2 LA 6 1R 0 g A ) A L A
ZRAE o AR R R o By T AR R
R AR A > A 4 I T R T R S
ARF 3 R S M B, < A AT T e A
7 45 18] W S A £ A0 358 O B 2 AR
ReMBREZR -=HFR-F-F
ToAZT— HIREE > W EE A
R ERR - BORSS 8 AR ) -

A5 0 ) SO A B L R B L A
DR o FL v — I S SR AR 5 0 5
g BB AR > B ERAT B At A sk 48 BB
G Be A7k AR B AME 25 AT - AR Z
TSR TG A 4 0 A5 705 B 21 b R BEK
F o EATIH FELAARAF A ANZ
REZSE o TR 1R Z 3 B M 2 bL R
mE

Group
YN
2013 2012
—B—=4 —®— g
US$’000 US$’000
FF FILFo
Total bank and other borrowings — $RAT B H Al 5 3 A8 %A 976,716 540,574
Less: Pledged deposits W BRI (30,357) (1,027)
Time deposits with maturity FHMHBB=MZ (95,931) —
over three months 7 W17 K
Cash and cash equivalents B4 BB 4 A (374,140) (183,154)
Net debt e R 476,288 356,393
Total equity HE 75 A4 1,246,315 1,092,555
Net debt to equity ratio AR R R A b R 38% 33%

42 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

42 LHEHEF

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Particulars of Principal Investment Properties

TEREVEEHN

31 December 2013 = F—=44+_H=+—H

Details of the principal investment properties of the Group as at 31

December 2013 are as follows:
Location Hi %

Unit Nos. 10C, 11B, 11C, 12A, 12C, 15A, 15D, 16A, 16D,
17A, 17D, 18B, 18D and 19B of Block No. 1 and
car parking spaces Nos. A20-23, A25-29, A47, B1-B5,
Fortune Garden, No.1357 Dong Fang Road, Pudong
District, Shanghai

v ol R IR SR 5 B 1357 9% ¥ AR RIS 1
10C, 11B, 11C, 12A, 12C, 15A, 15D, 16A, 16D,
17A, 17D, 18B, 18D X 19B%E ¥ fir 5 R {5 HifLA20-23,
A25-29, A47, B1-B5

The Whole of Block No. 9 and 17,
No. 35-2 Ying Bin Road, Aksu City,
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

B e A 5 W A R T 5 Bk
0 B 35-2 9% SR OME K 5B 17 4 ik

Lao Long He Village, Changji City,
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

R A5 W R I B W R A

Hejialiang Village, Zhongchuan Town,

Yongdeng County, Gansu Province

EEE-ES-2-LDlFSuES )

Zhao Village/Xin’an Village/Luoli Village,
Gaoqu Township, Sanyuan County, Shaanxi Province

BV =R SR R AR R RN

A H

BIE_ZF =41+ A=+ HALHZ EHRE

MEFBWT :
Use H#&

Residential units for rental

2 B r 11 ML D&

Residential units for rental

8 B AL A AL i

Factory for rental

Wi b A L L g

Factory for rental

Wi B A AL 55 H 3

Factory for rental

i s 1 AL 85 1 38
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Executive Directors

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman)
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

Non-executive Director

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
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Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
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Mr. Sakda Thanitcul
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Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
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Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul
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Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
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Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Company Secretary
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Corporate Information
DNEEH

Registered Office

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

21st Floor, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Auditors

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Legal Advisors

Hong Kong Law
Linklaters

Bermudian Law
Appleby

Principal Bankers

Citibank, N.A.
KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

Share Registrars

Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Bermuda

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 43

American Depository Receipt (“ADR”)

Sponsored Level 1

Ratio: 1 ADR = 25 Ordinary Shares
Exchange: OTC

Symbol: CPKPY

CUSIP: 125918201

Depository: The Bank of New York

Website
http://www.cpp.hk

A H

AMRER

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

FTEEXEME
HWH BB

B R A 2 1A
B E AR

555 9 5l 2% R
B E A
EERER
B

A ) 2 5 B o S P

H #E S
Appleby
FEFRET
B SRAT

PH 2R SR AT
KERET

BREOBFEERE

7

HHEH I B ABTARA TR
T A7 B )5 KB R 18398
AR O1TELIT12-171698 4

H 3%

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

IR 40 L 7 it BE

AW A2 5 A RAFH
JBe AR ARHE « 43

XBEETE=EZ (ADR])

Sponsored Level 1

F3 1 1 ADR = 25/ % 8 i
5 AR B

9% : CPKPY

CUSIP: 125918201

PRAF N ¢ LA BRAT

ACE D

http://www.cpp.hk
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